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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006

(Time Noted – 7:02PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be asked to step forward, state the request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions they may have. Questions may then be entertained from the public. After all the Public Hearings are completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; however, they have up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that you turn off your cell phones. And, we will start with the Roll Call.

Ms. Gennarelli takes Roll Call for Attendance. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY

(Time Noted - 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006 

RICHARD LEVIN-17K WAREHOUSE INC. 

10 ROUTE 17K, NWBH                       









(97-1-24) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for non-conforming signs, have 1 year to conform. Allowable signage is 1 / 2 of street frontage.                             

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is Richard Levin-17K Warehouse Inc.  Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, the mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Would you please use the microphone so that it will go directly into the tape recorder. 

Mr. Levin: I would like to cut down the size of the sign that I have in the front of the store. I think you have pictures of it. It seems to deteriorate quite badly every year and quite frankly I don’t think it’s very attractive and we want to put an awning in front which will cover the two front windows and the entrance and be a new sign. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, you presently have a freestanding sign.

Mr. Levin: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And, the total square footage?

Mr. Levin: I don’t have any papers, they are all up there, I don’t know. They’re actually cutting down the size of the sign; they are making it a lot smaller.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we understand that. I should mention that all Members of the Board do make site visits and so we have been to all of these locations. Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: It would have been nice to know the square footage.

Ms. Eaton: There will be no sign on the building; it’ll just be on the awning?

Mr. Levin: It will just be on the awning, yes.

Mr. Manley: Will the awning be lit?

Mr. Levin: Presently, no. I haven’t had plans to do that. I was going to wait and see what it looked like.

Chairperson Cardone: When was the freestanding sign installed? It looked rather new.

Mr. Levin: I would guess around 10 years ago, maybe 15.

Mr. Manley: Now it says here that the current signage, 1 freestanding sign is 100 sq ft, but the new signage will be an additional 360 feet?

Mr. Levin: Yes. The freestanding sign is the one that’s out near the road. The signage that’s existing now is, if you see on the pictures, quite large. I think it’s 45 feet and I think it’s 8 feet high, 45 x 8. Actually it’s less, it’s about 7, because there is a run down for rain on top of it. The building is rather flat across the front and large. And, I thought the sign, being an awning, would bring some depth to the front of the building also.

Mr. Hughes: Sir, do you intend to leave all this signage up on the wall as well?

Mr. Levin: No.

Mr. Hughes: That’s all coming down?

Mr. Levin: All coming down, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: So, the awning basically would be over the area where the doors are?

Mr. Levin: The doors and the windows in the front, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll just apologize. I didn’t see the square footage here. It’s here. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please stand and state your name and address. If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Levin: Thank you.

(Time Noted - 7:08 PM)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:06 PM)

RICHARD LEVIN-17K WAREHOUSE INC. 

10 ROUTE 17K, NWBH                       









(97-1-24) IB ZONE 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming it’s regular meeting. On our first application of Richard Levin – 17K Warehouse Inc, seeking an area variance for non-conforming signs. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I think it would be an improvement to the building by condensing everything a little bit.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, and that other sign is really unsightly and very large.

Mr. McKelvey: Actually, on that other sign, letters come off. They put them up. They are not painted. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: And the guy said they were going to take all the other signs off the building too.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s the signs I am talking about.

Mr. Hughes: It would seriously reduce the number of square feet. Do we need to make that a condition for approval?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion that we approve it and that he removes the upper sign off the building.

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second that motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote


John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes                                   (Time Noted - 10:07 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:09PM)

VITO PONESSE


QUAKER STREET/NYS ROUTE 300, NWBH






(3-1-55) AR ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area sizes for a 27 Lot Cluster Development. Utilities: Cluster Developments with lots less than 1-acre shall be served by public water and sewer.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Vito Ponesse, Quaker Street and Route 300.  

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Marti: For the record, my name is Craig Marti.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the microphone, please? It comes off the stand.

Mr. Marti: Yes, thank you. My name is Craig Marti, I am representing the firm of Valdena and Marti Engineering & Surveying here tonight. The application with regards to the Ponesse parcel is 102-acre parcel with access off Quaker Street, which on the map is along the right hand side north on the exhibit map is straight up on the page. The access is the northerly orange line or the orange line, which runs east and west through the property. The map as it’s displayed shows an as of right subdivision plan. It also shows that plan in relation to the next item on the Agenda, which is an adjoining subdivision. The Planning Board upon reviewing the sketch plan of the Ponesse parcel asked us to consider not only the development of the two parcels concurrently and in cooperative which each other, but they asked us to consider clustering provisions which are in the code. The second page of the exhibit, which I’ll turn to now...

Ms. Gennarelli: You can take the mic with you if you like. It comes off the stand.

Mr. Marti: So, the first page of the exhibit basically shows the lots as outlined here in orange, for display purposes, as they would be proposed under the as of right zoning with which we would go to the Planning Board for approval. The second page of the exhibit, the Ponesse parcel is north, the northern portion of the map as shown. The next item on the Agenda is Fairview Homes and Biagini Lands, which are the southerly 56-acre parcel, which is the old Colandrea Farm, which is accessed off Route 300 to the South. The lots as shown on this exhibit represent how they would be presented to the Planning Board in an as of right nature under the current Zoning to develop the parcels with the road network coming to the back portion and then providing a point where the two parcels can actually tie together in the future upon the build out of both projects. The second page of the display shows a clustering provision, which is allowed under the Town Zoning Code and in fact, was recommended by the Planning Board’s Consultants that we consider clustering the houses together. The provisions allow smaller than the normal zoning, as far as the lot area is concerned however with the use of on-site septics and well systems, the slow conditions would then govern as far as meeting the appropriate separation distances between septic systems and wells and the neighboring lots. It would allow the Planning Board to allow smaller than normal lot sizes with the intent to create and preserve the open nature character of the land and better utilize the more suitable areas for development. So, the process, which we will go through to obtain the clustering provision, would be to evaluate the parcels as they can be built under the Zoning. And, then modify the layout of the lots such that there’s no greater lot number than would be provided without the Clustering Provision. In evaluating the request to cluster the lots we however found a provision in the Zoning Code, which prohibits the application of Clustering Provisions if any of the resulting lots are on less than one acre in size. So, we approached the Town Board asking them for a change of the Zoning Code, if they would consider the elimination of that one paragraph or the modification of one paragraph to allow for the flexibility to allow the provisions in this particular project. Well, they agreed that this project made sense to pursue the Clustering Provisions, they didn’t want to change their Code and open the language up to, you know, on a carte blanc nature so, they wrote a letter which was attached as an attachment to the application in support of the application of the Zoning Clustering Provisions to this particular project. I believe a copy of that letter was attached, if not, I have one here tonight as well.

Mr. McKelvey: We have it.

Mr. Marti: It’s from the Town Board? The Planning Boards Attorney has also written a letter in conjunction with its referral to the Board outlining the procedural steps and the process under which SEQRA be addressed with the addressment of the provision of the Zoning Code in relation to the future evaluation that the Planning Board will do under the SEQRA process to evaluate the development potential with regards to the septic systems and the wells and the roadway access and all of the environmental concerns they would go through typically as part of the Planning Board process will still be part of this project. So, in your determination tonight, I believe the letter from Mr. Donnelly has outlined a procedure in which you can make your determination separate from the resultant determination from the Planning Board and outlining basically that your decision should it be favorable to our request would allow them to apply the Cluster Provisions of the Zoning to this project and basically eliminate the need for public water and sewer on the lots that are less than one-acre provided we can demonstrate the appropriate use of soils and the appropriate separation distances that the County Health Department will require for the wells and septic systems. We’re basically requesting that you allow the Planning Board, in it’s jurisdiction, and it’s judgment to allow us to proceed and create smaller than normal lots. However, the lot development and the lot sizing of the lots would then be governed by the soil conditions and allow for the development of the lots on a concentrated basis with the preservation of the green and open space around them. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Marti, I’d like to reference a letter from the Office of the Supervisor, dated March 20th of 2006, indicating here that the Town Board at it’s meeting on February 15th of 2006 that a majority of the Town Board determined that it is in favor of and supports the granting of these, of the necessary variances from one-acre requirement of Section 185 – 26 Sub-section D. In order for the subdivision to proceed with the Clustered layout with smaller lot sizes are determined by soil types and Health Codes separation requirements as shown on the sketch plan displayed to us. Sincerely, Wayne Booth, Supervisor. I wanted to verify the information that I had here in this letter, so I did go to the minutes of February 15th of Town Board Work session. There seems to be a discrepancy with regard to the letter here from the Supervisor’s Office with respect to what actually happened at that meeting. I’m wondering if you could maybe offer some clarification or I may have to clarify that with the Supervisor’s Office, but in the minutes at the end of the meeting, after the discussion, it indicates here, you’re statement here, we’re approaching the Board to get their initial feedback on whether the provision to allow them to build them on smaller lots, the ultimate number would be dependent upon the soil types and the ability to design septic systems and wells with the appropriate separations under the Health Code requirements. Supervisor Booth held an informal poll of the Town Board to see if they recommend Mr. Marti go in front of the Zoning Board of Appeals. Informal vote: Mr. Woolsey - Nay, Mr. Benedict – Aye, Mr. Piaquadio – Aye, Mrs. Greene – Aye, Mr. Booth – Aye. Supervisor Booth said he supports the Cluster concept. It was my reading of this kind of gave me the impression that they were only looking to move this to the Zoning Board for a determination and not necessarily that they were wrapping their arms around the concept itself. The only person that made a statement supporting the Cluster concept was the Supervisor.

Mr. Marti: Well my request to them was and that may be slightly out of direct quote, but the purpose of our going there initially was to request that they actually change, consider a change in the Zoning. They were going through the Master Plan process; they had just finished the Master Plan or were approaching finalization of the Master Plan planning process. I knew they were considering Zoning revisions in short term and my initial context of my initial request for them was to consider whether or not this was an appropriate provision. We have a one-acre zone and the Zoning Code where the Clustering Provision is basically, states that the purpose of such development is to provide flexibility in the design and development of land in such a way as to the most appropriate use of land to facilitate adequate economic provisions of streets and utilities and to preserve the natural and scenic qualities of the open space. And, so my initial contact with the Town Board was on the context of would you consider changing the Zoning in its entirety so we don’t have to go to the Zoning Board and they, the conversation as I recall from the meeting with the Town Board was such that they tended to agree with the application of the clustering in this project, but they in no way wanted to consider the changing the verbiage of the Code such that it would apply to any project. So, that was the, my recollection of the contextual conversation at the Town Board meeting. But I haven’t reviewed the minutes in detail so I’ll look for any more feedback that you have.

Mr. Manley: O.K. I was just concerned because the minutes contradict the letter that was sent to the Chairman of the Planning Board and the Zoning Board of Appeals is contradictory to the tone of the meeting here as it is related in the minutes so, there’s a discrepancy somewhere as to really were they really in favor of it or was it more of a well we understand what you want to do, we are not really interested in making an actual text change to the Zoning so, our recommendation is that we have you move your question to the Zoning Board where they can make a determination. As opposed to them actually endorsing the concept. 

Mr. Marti: Well, I think that the letter and Wayne signed the letter, my feeling coming out of that meeting was that we had the support of the Board, of the Town Board, with a minor exception that to go forward with and apply the Clustering Provision and come to this Board in seeking of the appropriate variance.

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. Marti: The letter reflects, accurately reflects, my recollection and my feeling as I left the Town Board meeting that they were in support of. If it hadn’t been the case they were under no obligation obviously to write us any letter to this Board. We had already been to the Planning Board. We could have asked the Planning Board for a direct referral because we didn’t comply with the Zoning in our request to that Board for the Clustering Provision and then we would have come here without the Town Board’s input at all. So, my recollection and my feeling when I left the Town Board was that with one exception they supported the process. 

Mr. Manley: I would like to see if we can get maybe further clarification on whether or not they’re actually, as a cohesive group, all in favor of the Clustering and the smaller lot sizes. At least for my own understanding and the other thing, one of the reasons that I want that clarification is especially after just coming out of a new Master Plan where the actual Master Plan of the Town actually discourages the smaller lot sizes. They want the larger lot sizes especially in that corridor of the Town where they went through and did a major Zoning change to R-1 throughout that entire section of Town. It kind of contradicts the Master Plan. So, that was one of the things that I wanted to get clarification, is that what they are in favor of or are they in favor of the larger lot sizes?

Mr. Marti: I believe the Master Plan retains the Clustering Provisions throughout the Zones, even with the 1-acre lot sizes. So, I believe the Board was, with the understanding that they had been through this revision of the Master Plan. I believe that the Board was still, I don’t believe that the Master Plan has done away in any way or gone afar from the concept of the Clustering to preserve the open spaces. The overall density would not increase with our proposed Clustering Development over the more spread out as of right area which would place the houses spread out throughout the lots. It would utilize a higher piece that’s surrounded by some wetland areas in the middle of the property that would put them throughout the perimeter of the parcel rather than clustering them in the more suitable areas for development. So, that’s a matter, again I am sure, the minutes that you were reading from, is that a direct transcription of the tape or just a summation of the tape? I am not sure.

Mr. Manley: Most of the minutes are a summation of what occurred at the Meeting that’s all they normally are is a summation of what happened at the Meeting. 

Mr. Marti: Right.

Mr. Manley: I would be more than happy to give you these.

Mr. Marti: I fully understand. I believe if there was a direct transcription or if the tape is still available, you know, then I would be more than willing to have you take a look at that.

Mr. Manley: Sure.

Mr. Marti: You know, to see what the meeting … I am not sure if anyone else who’s here was at that meeting would like to add any input? I know that was a Public Meeting as well. So, if anyone would like to further expand upon my recollection of that meeting I would be glad to hear that.

Mr. Manley: I have a couple of other quick questions. One is if you were to do this project under normal 1-acre lots without Clustering, you’re saying that the number of lots that you would have would be the same amount that you have here presently.

Mr. Marti: Yes, that’s the …

Mr. Manley: Build out?   

Mr. Marti: That’s the build out, the Clustering concept is that we develop a as of right plan by which we create a lot count and then that lot count becomes the basis on which is the maximum number which we can cluster, wherever we cluster them on the site. So, the initial Planning Board process, should we obtain this variance, is to go back to the Planning Board with the engineering data that we need to demonstrate we can actually build it in this configuration in an as of right nature. Once we make the Planning Board comfortable with the number of lots and the size of project and the density that we will have on the 158 acres, that’s the lot count we would then proceed with in developing and evaluating the location and sizing of the lots on the hill side area in the back of the parcel and then on another wooded area that’s in the area at this location. So, the density would be the same whichever way we go. Whether we go with an as of right build out. Right now we are showing, I believe, it’s 20 or 21 lots on the north parcel and we’ve got about 16 on the southerly parcel with an as of right build out and I believe with the, actually there is 21 shown and 16, and on the Clustering development we may actually be giving up a lot on the northerly portion so it may, in configuring the lots and looking for the separation distances we may get one or two lots less even than we would with the standard as of right development.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Marti, on the, excuse me just a moment.

Mr. Manley: Sure

Chairperson Cardone:  …the proposed lots listed here are 27 and you keep referring to 20, which is the correct figure?

Mr. Marti: The 27 number actually was a prior draft where we looked at some higher density in this area. The draft and the latest revision shows 21 lots on the northerly Ponesse parcel at this time as what we feel we can get in an as of right build out. So, the number that we will get with the Cluster Development would be no more than that 21 lots we can demonstrate to the Planning Board.

Mr. McKelvey: The problem I see is that this went to the County as 27 lots. The application.

Mr. Marti: Well, it went to the County as a notification of intent to be lead agency from the Planning Board. The lot count with regards to the County …

Mr. McKelvey: No, I am talking about the one we have.

Mr. Marti: Oh, with this application, right.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: With this application.

Mr. Marti: Right, in this application necessarily, isn’t necessarily the establishment of a lot count by any means tonight. It’s the request for them to provide and apply the Clustering Provisions of the Zoning to allow the lots of less than one-acre to proceed without Public Water and Sewer. So, we are basically locking ourselves into the Health Department requirement separations on the water and sewer systems, the wells and septic systems.

Mr. McKelvey: But, did the County in their answer to us figure 20 or 27 lots or did they have the plan? 

Mr. Marti: The Town notified the County. I am not sure they requested or sent a copy of the plan with them or not. It wasn’t my mailing.

Chairperson Cardone: You weren’t finished yet, were you?

Mr. Manley: I just had another; these lot sizes obviously normally would have to be one-acre. You’re asking for a smaller square footage than one-acre. But, you can’t specifically tell us what lot because you have to wait until you actually do the soils and the perc tests and the whole nine yards, is that it?

Mr. Marti: Right. Based on the soils and perc tests that we have done, we’ve shown that everywhere where we show the as of right lots development we have had good perc tests in those areas. The best perc tests were along the higher area in the back where we feel that we can increase the density in this area and still provide those appropriate septic system designs and well separations in accordance with the Health Department requirements. So, the whole process in the as of right determination through the Planning Board as well as the redesign to met under the Clustering Provisions may result in a lesser density overall and that it may be 26 lots that we can squeeze in or maybe 21 lots that we can ultimately end up with. But overall, we are showing between the two projects, 21 on one level and 16 on the other with the expectation that we will probably, there is no way we can exceed those numbers and in fact as we cluster these and as we go through the Planning Board process we may loose a lot here or there because of storm water management facilities or further engineering considerations that we have to take into consideration during the design portion.

Ms. Eaton: What size would the lots be?

Mr. Marti: The smallest lot as we can perceive now would be roughly .6 acres and that would be geared by the separation distances. The use of other lands that are not conducive to development, some of the wetland areas in the back, for instance the lot shown as lot 8 here may show it as .6 acres. To make an as of right plan the lot, it’s shown as lots 10 and 11, the area of the wetland area can be included to meet the gross area requirements and then we are still relying on the soils conditions and the non wetland areas to design the septic system and the house and the well system to serve that house within the area that’s a buildable area of that lot.

Ms. Eaton: Are there individual septic systems?

Mr. Marti: Yes, they would all be individual septic systems.

Ms. Eaton: And, what about wells?

Mr. Marti: And, individual wells for each house.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to ask you to respond to some concerns that the Orange County Department of Planning had. The first is the proposed Subdivision has substantive effect on the surrounding wetlands, and there are locations involving eliminating NYS DEC wetlands barriers.

Mr. Marti: We had preliminary discussion with the DEC and we’ve designed the road network as such that the existing farm road to the Biagini parcel would be utilized as the main access point to the southerly from Route 300. There is an existing farm lane, which crosses the wetland area at this location. The road that we propose to serve the Ponesse parcel, off Quaker Street, crosses the wetland and then we’ve tried to minimize the impact on the wetlands by crossing one area where there is an existing culvert and there is already a pinch point at that location where there is an existing crossing of the wetlands. And, then we’ve picked the narrowest area here to cross the wetlands again to minimize that area. There will be wetlands permits associated with the project that will have to be developed through the DEC. There will be mitigative measures that we’ll have to take with the DEC and that’s regardless of manner in which the project is developed. The Clustering Provisions and the Clustering concept may minimize some of the impacts on the wetlands. We’re looking to improve an existing access road that Central Hudson has through an easement to serve the house on one of the southerly lots. Again though, it’s an existing access road and it’s an existing wetlands crossing that we will be improving as a driveway location. There’s other existing wetlands, we’ve been, so we would have to minimize that during the Planning Board review and the review by the DEC at a later date.  

Chairperson Cardone: Those are two issues that the County had with crossing the wetland buffer. The proposed road from Quaker Street should end at the area of access for proposed lot 4, and not cut through four (4) wetland buffer areas. And, lots 16 and 17 should have a shared driveway with lot 18 and not cut through the wetland buffer.

Mr. Marti: And those comments basically are directed toward the ultimate development of the plan in either scenario whether it’s developed as a Cluster or as a as of right. Those comments again will be circulated, I’m sure, with the Planning Board stage where the Planning Board is involved in the actual coordination or coordinating of the DEC review, the County Planning review, the County Health Department review as well as any other involved agencies with regards to orientation of the roadway and the lot way and the lot areas. Our appearance here tonight is basically to ask for the ability of the Planning Board to apply the Clustering Provisions to the particular subdivision and therefore allow us to work with and allow the most flexibility in minimizing any environmental impacts and the greatest opportunity to preserve the open nature of the land as it exists today.

Mr. Manley: You do know that this Board though could if the Board decided to issue an approval on this, could issue it with conditions.

Mr. Marti: Yes, I’m aware of that.

Mr. Manley: Which if the Planning Board can work with great, if not, then …

Mr. Marti: We are right back to an as of right development.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Marti: Whichever way, yes.

Mr. Manley: The other issue to that I think was on the County list was the cul-de-sac at where 12, 14, 13 and 11 meet. They weren’t too keen on having two cul-de-sacs abut each other. They were mentioning, I believe, in their letter that they wanted it to be a through road. Was that correct?

Chairperson Cardone: That was on the Biagini.

Mr. Marti: Yes that leads into, segues into the adjoining property. The discussions we’ve had with the Planning Board and with the DEC and now the Planning Department has brought them up, is that the, the way that this is shown and I’ve stated for the record at the Planning Board and I believe I mentioned it at the Town Board meeting as well, that they’re shown now as two cul-de-sacs because the first project that I brought, the first client that I had was the Ponesse parcel. I didn’t have anything on my drawing boards with regards to the southerly parcel. The only point of access to the project was off Quaker Street. I approached the Town Board for a road waver on the length of the cul-de-sac in order to get to the back portion of the lot. They basically indicated that they weren’t interested in those long cul-de-sacs, at least not as a Town Road, however there was nothing to stop us from proceeding as a Private Road. I then became a part of the adjoining parcel but since they are two separate entities and two separate developments as they’re presented, as they’re applied to the Planning Board, as we’ve applied here to this Board, they are two separate entities of ownership. I’ve stated that it’s the intent and I’ve had the conversation with both clients that it’s the intent to build the road to Town Road specifications, go through the Planning process as a private road. Because the Town won’t consider, they’ve stated basically that they will not consider a waiver for that length of a Town Road. However, if we can give them constructed such that the ultimate build out allows us to connect the two roads, at that point in time, the roads would then be built or when we build them are intending to build them to Town Road specifications. Pay the extra fees for the Town Road inspections, the ownership remaining private until such time as both projects were built out. Once there was the reduction or the elimination of a need for any waivers by providing an actual through road, at that time, we would offer both parcels and both roadways for dedication. The lots will be subdivided under a private road scenario with covenants in the deed such that when that becomes feasible those front portions of the lot will be dedicated to the Town District such that the road can be dedicated in the future upon the completion of both projects. So, the two cul-de-sacs are shown such that both projects can stand independent of one another. But, it’s the ultimate intent if they are both constructed, to actually connect the roads and eliminate the need for the two cul-de-sacs, which terminate the two roadways adjacent to one another. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?  

Mr. Hughes: Would you read the rest of the comments from the County that haven’t been mentioned already and then I have some problems that I’d like to review.

Mr. Marti: Sure.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We do not recommend the cul-de-sac on the southern portion of the proposed Subdivision. It should be connected to the other development. It is unclear where the lot line will end on lots 5-10, as it is not delineated.

Mr. Marti: Those are basically on the Clustering Provision and the delineation of that lot would basically be to comply with the ultimate dedication of the Open Space. Under the normal circumstances the lot lines would just extend out to the parent parcel property line. With the Clustering Provisions, we can draw the lot line such that it’s suitable for the development of the lot. The remaining portion would then become part of the Homeowners’ Association or the Land Trust or whatever other ownership provision is applicable under the law and with the approval of the Planning Board. So, the delineation of those lots behind the in Clustering Development would basically be determined by the areas where the wetlands were finally determined to be and the buildable areas of the lots were to be incorporated in those lots. 

Chairperson Cardone: Lots 5 through 15 should be connected to the other proposed subdivision in Lands of Highland Operating and utilize the other street with access onto North Plank Road.

Mr. Marti: That’s these lots coming out this way with, without this roadway connected. That’s a function of ultimately the Planning Board and the ability of the two projects to stand independently of one another. These lots, if this project gets built first, would logically be served by that, that point of connection to Route 300. If the nature is for both project to remain independent of each other, which is the desire of the applicants, that the permits be pursued and the mitigated measures be taken place so that we can actually get service to there from Quaker Street. It is a balancing act between do we cross the wetlands again to provide a through street or do we live with an extra long cul-de-sac and another cul-de-sac that don’t quite meet because they don’t cross the wetlands. We have Highway Departments pushing for the roads to become circular and through fares and we have Safety considerations of Emergency Ingress and Egress which likes the looping roads and add to the conflicting interests of the preservation of Open Space and the minimization of the wetlands disturbance and the wetlands permits necessary that the DEC will be pushing and discussing with us as well as how we can minimize those impacts on the wetlands. So, that’s a comment that would definitely be addressed in detail and in-depth and through a lengthy process that’s anticipated with the DEC and the Planning Board process as we move forward with either concept.

Chairperson Cardone: There’s no objection to the variance request; we recommend that the Town consider precedent setting in granting the minimum variance necessary for sub-standard lots in such conditions. 

Mr. Hughes: I would like to say at this point. Thank you for reading that, Grace. Let’s wind the tape way back up and I agree and concur with Mr. Manley’s opinion that this wasn’t the preferential treatment to send you here. They were sending you here and they weren’t referring you here and a lot of the guys who present preference here use that word referral. It’s a generic thing; it’s not a positive or negative thing. You’re sent here because there is illegal stuff here and that’s what we are here to review, whether we can decide to relieve you of that strain or not. Let’s back the tape up even further yet. You’re the engineer that represents the client here and I read all through here that’s there is a hardship that wasn’t created on its own. Well, if you looked into what the build able papers were on this project to begin with this would be going on to begin with. Do you have a number for buildable acres on this project?

Mr. Marti: Well they, roughly a third or to a half of the 100 acres is buildable and suitable… 

Mr. Hughes: Roughly? 

Mr. Marti:  … which is what we are looking for.

Mr. Hughes: You’ve gone through all of that and you can tell me roughly?

Mr. Marti: Yes, I don’t have the specific number with me.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So, then, in other words the hardship is created that you can’t get more lots out of this, conveniently, so that you would be willing to go to Clustering and anything else. There’s a lot of bad things going on here.

Mr. Marti: That’s not an accurate …

Mr. Hughes: I have the floor now, if you’ll excuse me. You’re talking about wells and septics and talking about 6/10 ths of an acre. That’s almost half of what’s required by law right now, and without setting any kind of a precedent. I don’t go along with that stuff to begin with. We have a Master Plan that we worked hard on to eliminate this kind of stuff. You have no water. You have no sewer. You are way overboard on this thing. You are looking for too many things. Your cul-de-sac is like 800 ft over what’s allowable. And, I understand that in your presentation you’ve described that all of these Agencies have looked into this but I don’t think they condone it. And, I don’t think that the Board condoned it either. You were sent here because there’s problems. There are many other problems that exist on this project and I won’t go into that now, but I just wanted to set the tone for the pace of the audience and the Board here that you’re way overboard on a lot of things here. So, now you’re going to take a formula that you’ve roughly said there might be a third or a half buildable acres there and all the other stuff that goes with it. It’s not enough information for me. I don’t know how my Board Members feel but I am not comfortable with this, there’s too many ghosts. You want the projects to stand independent on each other and you may join the roads later on. That’s too much of a crapshoot for me. 

Mr. Marti: Well, basically the request here is such that these projects can stand independent of one another. 

Mr. Hughes: So, how can the County guarantee they’ll ever come together? 

Mr. Marti: The lots, the planning process in the Planning Board will direct as such that those options exist. The Planning Board quite frequently will ask for reservation strips with the appropriate right of way width to allow for future connection to a larger adjoining lot. That’s happened over and over again. It’s a matter of record. The representation that these lots are basically … the process that we went through was to develop an as of right build able Subdivision for the Ponesse parcel to the North. We went to the Planning Board. They indicated that we would need the road waivers. We would need the litany of items we would have to discuss from a technical nature, from a technical perspective. We presented with, we have perc test data. We presented the reasonable number of lots that can be developed under the existing conditions, which is shown on the drawings we presented. The Planning Board process will indeed evaluate the perc test results, evaluate the proposed number of lots in an as of right condition. The as of right condition is what will proceed should we not receive our variance request here tonight. We will build the site with as many lots as we would ultimately build the site with the Clustering Provisions being allowed to apply.

Mr. Hughes: So, what’s the number or what’s the acres?

Mr. Marti: We have 102 acres of which there is enough build able acres to support 21 lots.

Mr. Hughes: Build able acres being?

Mr. Marti: That’s with the 1 lot zone.

Chairperson Cardone: You made the statement earlier that you can go up to 26 lots. At one point you mentioned the number 26.

Mr. Marti: The original, the original sketch had 26 lots, upon further determination there’s some topography issues with these lots got bigger in here. This lot became one lot instead of two. There was a lot that was originally proposed as three in this area, which became two lots. So, there was some changes made to the original sketch plan based on the field conditions as evaluated them. The field conditions will be confirmed during the Planning Board process. In the generation of the ultimate number of lots which will be developed we anticipate no more than this. I am certain that the Planning Board will allow us to go no more than this and they will may indeed require us to configure some of them and bring forth some consideration such that the lot count goes down. The flexibility in the orientation of the lots is what was requested of us by the Planning Board when they first reviewed both projects and saw both projects as they were presented. It was the Planning Board’s consultants who suggested that we consider the Clustering Provisions of the Code which allow for smaller than normal lot sizes to be built in such that the orientation of the lots are built on the most suitable areas with the idea of preserving as much Open Space as we can, which is consistent with the old Master Plan and consistent with the new Plan. 

Mr. Hughes: But that’s with water and sewer, you don’t have that here. You don’t have that luxury. The first thing that you are knocked out of the game with here is that you don’t have water and sewer. That is the primary sin here. Then, there’s a dozen others.

Mr. Marti: That’s why we’re here. That’s …

Mr. Hughes: So, now you’ve got every one of those lots knocked down automatically because you think you are going go with this size. Why not make some of the big, some of them small cluster a certain part of it and reconfigure? You’ve got to go wells and septics on every one of these. I don’t see how you are going to get your distances from the wetlands to begin with.

Mr. Marti: You know the wetland buffer is protected, there’s a 100-foot separation distance from the wetlands.

Mr. Hughes: Look at some of those lots, where can you get a lot from …

Mr. Marti: This gray area is the buffer area. So, beyond that 100 foot buffer area is where we can build the houses and the septic systems.

Mr. Hughes: So, how big are the size of those lots?

Mr. Marti: These lots, as I said, are the minimum of  .6 acres.

Mr. Hughes: So, what’s the biggest one?

Mr. Marti: The biggest one can be expanded to be a couple of acres, this lot up in this area.

Mr. Hughes: Can be expanded? So, what are they?

Mr. Marti: It’s a matter of the Planning Board will request that the lots be controlled, that we don’t expand the lots to utilize any non-build able or wetland area in the area of construction. These areas in here, this would be in that lot which shows it’s about three acres at this point in time.

Mr. Hughes: Is your definition of Open Space of likeness of the wetlands? Because I don’t see where you provided Open Space.

Mr. Marti: Well, we’re protecting the wooded area in this area is not going to be developed for the road crossing. There’s buildable areas along the southerly portions which will be left alone and there’s buildable areas in the central portion of the Ponesse parcel which will be left alone.

Mr. Hughes: So, there is no Park area or dedicated Open Space where people could use it? 

Mr. Marti: There’s no dedicated Park lands, no.

Mr. Manley: I have a …

Mr. Hughes: I have a ton of other questions, but I’ll get to you later

Mr. Manley: I have another question and that is, you’re attempting to fit in 21 lots here, what would the amount of lots be if you were to scale it back where you were putting in one acre lots, could you tell me that?

Mr. Marti: 21 lots. This as of right plan is developed with one-acre lots that meet the Zoning requirements, as they exist with no need for any variances. The 21 lots are generated as we can build it.

Mr. Manley: But, I’m speaking Clustering. If you Cluster with one-acre, you obviously wouldn’t be able to fit 21 lots, correct?

Mr. Marti: Not in those same areas, then the Clustering nature of condensing the lots. The whole purpose of the Clustering Provision is to allow for a reduction in the lot size such that the balancing of Open Space versus developed area can be managed by the Planning Board.

Mr. Manley: More in a water and sewer area, in this type of area and I’m only trying to figure out for my own, if you were to keep this exact footprint that you have here under the Clustering proposal, how many lots would you be able to squeeze out of it, (15) fifteen?

Mr. Marti: We may loose a third of the lots. 

Mr. Manley: (14) Fourteen? 

Mr. Marti: We may loose a third of the proposal lots. In that case we would go back to the as of right plan, build the one-acre lots and spread them through out the 160 acres. 

Mr. Manley: Now the upper northwestern corner of the property, correct. That is all going to be non-built on, is that non-built on or is that could change?

Mr. Marti: Right. This northwest actually the westerly portion of the property is bounded by a large wetland area that actually feeds, I believe it’s connected to and feeds the northernly portion feeds into Orange Lake. I believe is part of the largest wetland area that’s in this portion of the Town at least, maybe the biggest one in the Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Manley: O.K., so that entire northwestern corner is non-buildable because …?

Mr. Marti: Right. This portion is just wetlands lands that under any scenario will not have a house on.

Mr. Manley: So, again even if you were using it as a Clustered type of development, it can’t be used by the residents because its pretty much marsh land.

Mr. Marti: That’s right.

Mr. Manley: They can’t utilize it for recreation or, and again under Clustering isn’t that the idea of having Open Spaces to have areas where people can go and maybe play ball or recreation?

Mr. Marti: That’s one of the, there’s several criteria or several goals of the Clustering; there’s the recreational areas, there’s active recreation, there’s just pure Open Space Preservation which is, would be owned by a Community area which is under a legal type of entity that’s approvable or in conjunction with the Planning Board’s approval. There’s a Home Owner’s Association type of ownership where the access and the common lands are owned by the home ownership. There’s Land Trusts which can be set up and funded that can be formed in Compliance with State Laws and with Local Laws to allow for the preservation or the passive use in preservation Green Space and the Open Space. That type of common ownership, Association Ownership, prevents the individual homeowners from expanding into the wetlands, which is not that uncommon that once the house is there and there’s no jurisdiction over that, the yards creep in and the trees come down and some of the wetland areas are indeed, are indeed swampland. The areas in the back and down here is very wet. Some of the wetland areas, as it’s defined, are very seasonal in nature, very non-noticeable to some people as a wetland entity, but it contains either hydric soils or it contains some plants species which are conducive to a representation that there is a higher ground water table for a portion of the year or other wetland characteristics that would cause it to be classified as a wetland. So, some of those areas where they are marginally considered wetlands are some of the fringe areas of the fringe wetlands are areas which would be subject to the creeping backyard syndrome that can take place. I am not saying by any means the clustering would prevent future enforcement actions by any means, because any entity or any action by any Board cannot prevent that type of future control over the lands.

Mr. Manley: One other thing, the size of the lots are going to be fairly small, 1 / 2 an acre, what would be the likelihood that in the future, as these lots are developed, if you received Planning Board approval to move forward that those, that the builder would have to come back before this Board to request a variance because of the sizes of the lots not having adequate side yard set backs or even front yard set backs because of these limitations that are on these lots.

Mr. Marti: That’s part of the Clustering Provisions in that it allows the Planning Board some flexibility in the application of the minimum set backs and the minimum yard widths and the lot areas. As it stands in an as of right area, the Clustering concept allows great flexibility on behalf of the Planning Board to work with the developer and create the most efficient use of the buildable or the area of the land where we choose to build and not preserve to preserve it allows for us to put and utilize those soils that in that area in conjunction with the Health Department regulations and the separation requirements which we’re by no means are we trying to avoid in coming to this Board for a variance on the application of Clustering Provision. We still know that during the Planning Board process we will have to demonstrate that the separation requirements, that the septic systems as designed and the wells as designed and implemented and  to serve the project meet all of the Health Department requirements. It will be reviewed extensively by engineers at the Planning Board level; it will be reviewed by Department of Environmental Conversation staff and engineers and it will ultimately be reviewed by Health Department engineers with regards to all of those limitations on separation of and the use of these areas for water, for wells and septic systems.

Mr. Hughes: I believe that Mr. Manley was inferring that the possibility that you don’t have enough side yards for a pool, for decks or garages and things like that because you only (6) six tenths of an acre. So, by condoning something like this, we end up with you back here just because as soon as the people move in and they want to put a shed, or they want to put a pool or a deck we’re swamped because of a poor design.

Mr. Marti: Well, those types of concerns could be addressed in the restrictions that Mr. Manley referred to as being a condition of the approval such that these lots once approved and approved by the Planning Board would be therefore subject to no further variances with regards to decks or pools or setbacks or any of that nature. And, I believe that the attorneys between the two Boards can hash out language such that those type of concerns about future condensation of the smaller lots …

Mr. Manley: Unfortunately, Craig, what happens is people that are buying the lots and buying the houses don’t know that those restrictions exist and the minute they go before the Building Department and find out that those restrictions exist it opens up a nightmare. Let the buyer beware, but at the same time, you know there is a, I think that the onus is on the Community and the Town to make sure that the residents that are buying the property have the information before they buy the property. 

Mr. Marti: Sure, I understand that.

Mr. Hughes: I am a little bit confused about your eagerness to participate with something like this when you have enough land there where you could have two and three acres and one acres spread throughout, the same number of units and probably the same number of profit margin dollars to your clients, why are you pushing for this with so many sins against it, I can’t understand. And, the result is that they’re going to be ending up back here and it becomes a civil matter, then the people buy the homes, they don’t know, they come in, somebody wants to do something and there’s deed restrictions. It’s not up to the Community, it’s not up to the Judge here, everybody is in the pile then. So, deed restrictions are fine as far as verbiage goes, but they don’t work.

Mr. Marti: In response to that, basically we were prepared to proceed with the as of right development. The first Consultants and the first entity to suggest and guide us toward the application of Clustering with regards to this project was the Planning Board. So, we are basically responding to a recommendation and a request from the Planning Board to pursue the Clustering concept. So, we’ve done that and now we’ve exhausted the avenues by which we can pursue that option by coming here tonight. Basically, you will be, we can accept tonight the decision which you make, whether its tonight or whether you go back and listen to the tape of the Town Board meeting, ultimately it’s your decision as a Board to look at the evidence which we presented here, the understanding that the lot count won’t change as far as how many houses we can put on the 160 acres, whether it’s spread out throughout under a one-acre and mixed size lot scenario or whether it’s a smaller lot scenario as the Planning Board has requested. The bottom line will be that we will go back to the Planning Board under the guidance which you’ve given us with your determination and either have the flexibility to work with the Planning Board to develop these two parcels actually in the best manner which the Planning Board feels is appropriate or we will have to go back to the Planning Board with what I feel we can get with a legal as of right building plan and then push for the permits and the associated reviews that we’ll need to build them, the same number of lots only in a manner in which the Planning Board, you know, may feel that they would rather have something better.

Mr. Manley: If this property was 102 acres of pristine land, no wetlands, nothing, perfect buildable acres, would you build clustering or would you just go ahead and do as of right?

Mr. Marti: The, my preference really is to build in a manner consistent with the balancing of the interests of the applicant and the desires of the Town of Newburgh. Both by Clustering the Provisions of the Clustering in the Code are there such that the Planning Board or the applicant can look at the land that we have and determine which is a better way to pursue the development of the project. If I have pristine acres with rolling hills, with no grading problems, plenty of roadway access and I go in with an as of right building and the Planning Board says Craig we’d really like to see you Cluster it and preserve this area for whatever purpose then I would be basically obligated, in the interest of my client, to find the common ground between the Planning Board’s desires and the builders desires to get the same number of lots and most builders really have minor difference in their concern for whether they would want to go one way or the other. They basically just want to get the lots approved and go forward and sell the lots or build on them and sell the houses. The Planning Board is charged with the task of trying to make the allowable development, the most suitable and the most conducive to their ideas of the nature of the Town of Newburgh and the implementation of the Zoning and Master Plan which they are charged to do at the Planning Board level. So, basically what we are asking for tonight is for a variance which will allow them the flexibility to apply the Zoning in a manner which they see fit for the Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board may have further questions but I know that there are members of the public that may have been waiting to give information to the Board. If there are any members of the public who would like to address this issue would you please take the microphone, state your name and address.

Audience Members: Could we take a few minutes and look at the maps, please? The people that are concerned because  we haven’t had a chance, thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Anyone who would like to come up and look at the plan may do so.

Mr. Manley: If anyone would like to take my map, step right here, if you want? 

The members of the audience approached and looked at the maps.

Audience Member: Could you explain what is an as of right is?

Mr. Manley: An as of right is to build it based on a non-cluster that is based on the number of lots that they can get in with the amount of build able acres.

The members of the audience approached and looked at the maps. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would ask the members of the public to please hold their comments so that we can get it on record, right at this time, simply look at the drawings.

Chairperson Cardone: Would you all please take your seats at this time so we could continue with the meeting? If any members of the public wish to make comments, please stand, state your name and address and speak into the microphone.

Neighbor #1: I have several questions. First off is I have heard a lot of talking about septic and well. The questions seem to be more about how it affects or how the Health Department will rule on what’s in this new development, but what information is going to be made available to us on how it’s going to affect our well and septic because 102 or whatever new homes with wells and septic I can’t imagine isn’t going to affect the water table and other elements of our area?

Mr. Marti: There is a Planning Board Review Process. There will be another Public Hearing later, the Health Department requires not only the review of the designs of the septic systems and where we propose them it compares the separation distances. Another component of the Health Department review prior to Planning Board approval is the evaluation of test well data which is drilled in a representative number of lots under the Department of Health criteria with long term pumping tests and draw down tests on lots on wells are adjacent to or within the study area to determine if you have enough ground water to support the project and the septic systems are an evaluation of soils information which is reviewed by both the Town and the County Health Department such that they assure that they are done in accordance with all the regulations.

Neighbor #1: And, when that’s made available we’ll be invited to another meeting to find out about that?

Mr. Marti: Yes, the Planning Board will be inviting you back to another Public Hearing at a later date.

Neighbor #1: O.K. The second question obviously has to do about the wetland because we live right at ____, where it looks like the road is going to come out onto the street, right next to our property.

Mr. Marti: Yes.

Neighbor #1: The long thin piece of property there. I don’t know the number, the piece of property up there, there is a pond up there, where you were in the front, put your finger up  …

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, for the questions and your responses, we need both people to speak into the microphone because the microphone goes directly into a tape and we need to get a tape of the meeting. So, if you would pass the mic to him and he could answer and, I am sorry, we need to get it on tape.

Mr. Hughes: We could let Mr. Marti use this (Mr. Hughes’ microphone).

Chairperson Cardone: He can use that one, that’s fine, as long he is speaking into one of the microphones.

Neighbor #1: O.K., from what I understand now, a lot of the water on Quaker Street already runs into that area. Now if you are going to build a road on there, more water is going to run on to there and our property is right next door. What provisions are going to be made so that we’re not flooded out by that already saturated land?

Mr. Marti:  Well, actually the development of the road access would be under Review of the Town Engineer and the Planning Board’s consulting engineer. Part of the Planning Board process is the development of storm water management plan which will be, would take into consideration flows from off site, onto the site as well as flows that are generated on site and are changed by the development of the road or the development of the houses. So, therefore, those types of issues would be addressed and our design of the roadway and our design of the storm water management system and reviewed for concurrence by the Town Engineer, the Town’s Planning Board consultants and the DEC in this instance would also be reviewing the storm water management aspects of the project.

Neighbor #1: O.K. Also, in regards to the wetlands, who does the study on what’s living there now? I know you talk about the size and the build ability of the wetlands and protection of the wetlands, but who is now studying what’s in there? We know, there are bald eagles in there, there are peregrine falcons, there’s all kinds of hawks that are watch able lists, if not, endangered lists. Who is watching out for them? 

Mr. Marti: The wetlands areas are delineated by the applicant’s consultants on the initial basis. The DEC and the Army Corp of Engineers inspect the delineation and concur or disagree with that under which case scenario the wetlands limits as shown on the plans would be modified to accommodate the concurrence of both the Army Corp of Engineers and the Department of Environmental Conservation such that the development is then based upon a wetlands delineation that has been agreed upon by both the Federal and State Wetland Agencies and the local jurisdictional agencies should they desire to, some Municipalities even have a Wetlands Specialist that would evaluate the delineation as well.

Neighbor #1:  And, that will be available for us to see also? 

Mr. Marti: Yes, it is all part of the Planning process based upon how the development proceeds, you know, in relation to tonight’s decision.

Mr. Manley: Craig, has the Planning Board started the SEQRA process yet?

Mr. Marti: They declared their intent to be Lead Agency, sent us to, which doesn’t really start any time lines or commitment lines on their part. All it does is alert the public that they plan on taking the lead role in the review of the project.

Mr. Manley: They haven’t then declared whether it is a positive or negative declaration yet? 

Mr. Marti: No, we are far from that in relation to the application. All they’ve done is declared that they intend to be the Lead Agency on that. And, they’ve notified other agencies, which may elect to provide input into the process. In very rare instances some other agency may request to be Lead Agency.

Mr. Manley: Normally, it’s the Planning Board.

Mr. Marti: Normally, it would be the Planning Board. This project isn’t of such scope that anyone else would take it.

Mr. Manley: The purpose of that is once the Planning Board determines them self to be Lead Agency, if they declare a positive declaration and request that the applicant provide a Full Environmental Impact Statement for the project. At that point the public can come in and comment on such things like the bald eagles and at that point the applicant would have to address how they would mitigate that particular situation. So, if that answers your question?

Neighbor #1: O.K. Another question, it looks from the map, just at a quick glance, that the road comes out directly in front of ___, I mean directly in front of their living room. Yet, there is a gap between their property and the property next door. Is it possible for that road to be moved, so it’s not directly in front of ___?

Mr. Marti: Is that this area here? 

Neighbor #1: Yes.

Mr. Marti: That was located such that under an as of right building condition, the suitable area that has been found on the front portion and the portion which fronts Quaker Street could actually be developed as a home site. The Clustering Provision would basically allow us to consider moving that home site back into another area of the lot. The Planning Board would have jurisdiction to encourage us or direct us in how we develop the areas where we choose to put the same number of houses. The other consideration in locating the road is to try to minimize the distance in which we cross the wetlands. So, if we move it up here farther then we are looking at a longer stretch and a longer crossing of the wetlands of which the DEC would then, we may just face DEC may tell us to move it over to shorten that distance. So, there’s a lot of agencies that will have a lot of input into the final road configuration and the final lot configuration, based upon the parameters which we are given here tonight to develop the site.

Neighbor #1: O.K. There is a strip of property right along where the road is going to be that’s attached to our property. It’s un-wooded whereas the rest of your property is wooded and we’ve been maintaining that, basically for the whole time we’ve lived there and the people who lived there for 30 years before maintained that. Do we have any rights to that property?   

Mr. Marti: That would be a different jurisdiction than I would be prepared to offer an opinion. 

Neighbor #1: O.K.

Mr. Marti: I as an engineer would not offer any legal opinion on that.

Neighbor #1: Who would I find out about that from?

Ms. Martini: Your attorney.

Neighbor #1: O.K. And, the last question for the Board, the speed limit on Quaker Street is 45 M.P.H., with this exit road, there is going to be a lot more traffic. Can that be lowered and enforced? Because most other roads around us are 30 M.P.H.

Mr. Hughes: The Town Board has requested to lower all Town Roads to come down to 30 M.P.H., when the DOT approves it that will happen.

Neighbor #1: O.K. that’s all. Thank you.

Neighbor #2: my wife just finished talking. I’m concerned with number 21, your property site there. Right now the Town has put in pipes on the other side of the road running the water off onto that property. Now that property floods and it comes onto my property right now. If you put a house there, how are you going to build a house with water all over the place?

Mr. Marti: That’s a discussion that we had had initially with the Town of Newburgh as to whether first got, they didn’t have any rights to dump the water onto private property without any maintenance of the situation.

Neighbor #2: Yeah, but they’re doing it.

Mr. Marti: With the understanding that we are in the Planning process and would like to develop the property and that being a relatively minor portion of the development considerations with regards to the storm water management. The redirection and reorientation of that lot and piping of that water in conjunction with our managing of our own storm water runoff would be a consideration such that we would eliminate the flooding aspects. We may actually approve the off site drainage onto your property by the development of our road and redirecting that flows especially those that come from across the street into our project and manage them within our project rather than letting them continue onto your property.

Neighbor #2: O.K. There is, the road is going to come into and you’re going to knock down that barn or whatever it is that’s right next to my property. Now, I know people have been throwing things in there. We have only lived there seven years but they’re throwing junk on there and I believe there is some hazardous waste on there. So, that needs to be looked at because I’ve seen it myself. They’ve got some kind of barrels of stuff over there in that old barn. You know it’s right there. I see it. It’s on my property right next to it, where you’re going to put the road right through. You need to look at that before you start bulldozing through there.

Mr. Marti: The Planning Board often requests that studies of that nature be conducted around active farm areas, abandoned orchards are common place for doing some soils investigations and evaluations. That type of minor level of environmental evaluation is customary throughout the Planning Board process or at the beginning of the Planning Board process. If there was anything that was developed or identified in the Planning Board process whether you came to the Board and expressed a concern or one of their consultants saw it or one of our consultants were to identify it, then we would deal with that during the development of the build out plan.

Neighbor #2: O.K. I just wanted to bring that to your attention.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other members of the public who would like to speak? Yes, your name and address please.

Mr. Mazarelli: Certainly. My name is Gene Mazarelli, I reside at 381 Lakeside Road and I am one of the individuals who own the parcel of the 102 acres. A couple of things, for this gentleman who says he’s seen some stuff, I would gladly provide you with numbers to reach me at. I have had the Police there several times. Guess where it’s coming from? Your neighbors across the street. O.K. I have one young man arrested. I can identify them later; I can show you Police Reports. We would be very happy to monitor that. O.K. We are about four years into bouncing between Boards. What I want to say is, we are desperately trying to follow all the rules and regulations. We’ve been very patient, I think. We started with the Planning Board, went to the Town Board that took a year, back to the Planning Board, found an error in the Clustering effect. Brought that to the attention of the Planning Board, they now bounced us back to the Town Board who now bounced us to you guys.  So, four years we’ve been trying very hard to follow all the rules and regulations, that is our intent. Our intent is to be good neighbors. We have addressed the flooding problem to the Town several times. And, this is a direct quote from the Highway Department ‘We’ve been doing that for a long time’. So, we’re upset about water being drained on us also and we would look to mitigate it properly. If there’s any questions anybody wants to ask me I would be happy. But, I just want to make sure the Board understands that after four years, we are no further ahead than we were four years ago because now we are being asked or being directed to go back to another Board. Maybe the thing to do is get all the Boards together. Cause that’s our intent, to be a good citizen, every one of us lives here in the Town of Newburgh or in Orange County and we want to be good neighbors. With that, I’ll yield. Thank you.      

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. If any other members of the public would like to make a statement. Are there any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: No other questions, but I do have a statement to make. That, Mr. Mazarelli, I have been at all those meetings and I agree that you have been very patient. And, I can’t imagine that it has evolved to this. To me, you have enough land there and you should be able to spread it out. I don’t know why they put you all through this.

Mr. Mazarelli: I don’t either. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Mazarelli: I hope we can get it all resolved to everybody’s satisfaction.

Chairperson Cardone: You wanted to have further input as far as the minutes from the Town Board, is that correct?

Mr. Manley: Correct. I would, if the Board pleases, I would be willing to make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would appreciate that motion.

Mr. Manley: … for the purpose of gathering additional information.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second to that motion?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. This portion of the meeting is held open until next month. Could we have that date? 

Ms. Gennarelli: The 21st, it’s a Tuesday.

Chairperson Cardone: Next month, because of Thanksgiving, we will be meeting on Tuesday the 21st at the same location at 7:00.

(Time Noted – 8:18PM)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:18PM)

VINCENT BIAGINI


NYS ROUTE 300/QUAKER STREET, NWBH






(3-1-61.2) AR ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area sizes for a 16 Lot Cluster Development. Utilities: Cluster Developments with lots less than 1-acre shall be served by public water and sewer.

Chairperson Cardone: The next item on the Agenda, Vincent Biagini.

Mr. Marti: I would request that the prior discussion apply to both projects, that both projects were discussed, I believe, throughout the course of the dissertation of the prior. If someone would like to speak specifically towards the southerly parcel, I’d be happy to entertain that. However, if at the Board’s discretion, they be treated in the same manner since they are really interrelated then I would question the people.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any members of the public that would specifically like to address the Vincent Biagini proposal? If not, I’d entertain a motion to hold this part of the Hearing open.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 8:20PM)

…not addressed on this application …(Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings were in order.)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:21PM)

RICK MILTON


88 SUSAN DRIVE, NWBH






(46-3-6) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the rear yard, side yards setbacks, lot building coverage, lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity to build an addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The next item on our Agenda Rick Milton, 88 Susan Drive. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order.

Mr. Lytle: Good evening. My name is Ken Lytle. I am representing Rick Milton. He is looking to do a small-enclosed porch addition on the rear of his house, located along Susan Drive. The proposed addition is approximately 12 ft by 17 ft. In asking for this it’s an existing, very small non-conforming lot to the current codes and there’s multiple variances required. The rear yard setback required is 40 ft and he would need a 10-yard note: s/b *(10-feet?) setback or easement for that. The existing is 38.1. The side yard set backs required is 30 ft and a total of 80 ft. and he would need a 12.8 ft variance on one side and a total of 57.3 ft. Again, both of those setbacks, there’s no change based on what we’re proposing, those are existing conditions. The maximum building coverage required is 10% and the existing is 14.5, we are looking for a 1.5 increase to 16% with a 6% variance from the existing non-conforming and a 20% max surface coverage over the entire parcel. 20% is required, the existing is 31% and we are looking for a 1% increase in that, total for a 12% variance from the existing non-conforming. It’s a very small addition to the rear of it. Many houses along that road have a very similar situation and have had them over the years. He’s again looking to do something in the rear of the house, kind of hidden from the road, hidden from the public. Something they like to do and actually have a view of the back woods.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: Those back woods build able?

Mr. Lytle: Yes, they are. Not by this client, it’s owned by somebody else.

Mr. Hughes: Could you describe the distances between the rear of the back of this lot to the next-door neighbors proposal?

Mr. Lytle: From the proposed addition to the rear line is 30 feet.

Mr. Hughes: No, I am talking about the neighbors. There is a proposal going on in there that I believe you’re the engineer on as well.

Mr. Lytle: Any proposed house structure; there is actually a drainage easement, which along the process was dedicated to the Town of a previous subdivision. And, I believe the closest house behind that would be somewhere between 100 to 120 ft away from this.

Mr. Hughes: So, that is a drainage easement, it’s not just a stream?

Mr. Lytle: It actually was an intermittent drainage swale and the Town asked when we were doing the subdivision for the other client to actually dedicate that. I think it was 30 ft wide we gave to the Town. The Town could go in and maintain that and solve some of the problems along Susan Drive from some of the neighbors actually to the South of this parcel.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address.

Being none, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Lytle: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:24PM)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:07PM)

RICK MILTON


88 SUSAN DRIVE, NWBH






(46-3-6) R-1 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Rick Milton, 88 Susan Drive, seeking variances for a rear yard and side yards setbacks, lot building coverage, lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity to build an addition on the residence.  This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I think what he’s asking for is like everything in the rest of the neighborhood.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t think that there was anything more than 7 feet that was out of whack on the whole thing and the percentages were increased by 1%.

Chairperson Cardone: 1%, which is minimal.

Mr. Hughes: 1% of what exists there now.

Mr. Kunkel: Right. It doesn’t appear to be any neighborhood opposition to the request.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Kunkel: If there was, knowing Balmville, they’d be here.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Mr. Manley: I’ll second that.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: John McKelvey: Yes

   Ruth Eaton: Yes

   Ronald Hughes:  Yes

   Robert Kunkel: Yes

 James Manley: Yes

  Grace Cardone: Yes     The Motion is carried.     (Time Noted - 10:08PM) 

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:24PM)

RAYMOND G. & EILEEN STAFFON

3 CLOUD STREET, NWBH








(43-1-44) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances to keep two (2) prior built sheds; one is in the front yard and for total allowable square footage of accessory structures for both sheds.

Chairperson Cardone: The next item on our Agenda Raymond and Eileen Staffon, 3 Cloud Street. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order.

Mr. Staffon: Good evening. Ray Staffon. I believe the two requests for a variance are, we placed a shed in one of our front yards which we supplied photographs with the application and also we have an additional shed which exceeds the limit for an accessory building. And, we are looking for a variance to allow those sheds to remain on the property.

Chairperson Cardone: You have a total of (5) five sheds on the property. And, they were all built without Building Permits, is that correct? 

Mr. Staffon: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And, then later obtained Building Permits for (3) three of those.

Mr. Staffon: (3) Three of those, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: You have a total of (6) structures, though, on the property.

Mr. Staffon: On the entire property?

Chairperson Cardone: You have the pool house also?

Mr. Staffon: Yes, we have a Building Permit for that too.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you tell me what is contained in each of those sheds? 

Mr. Staffon: Lawn and garden equipment.

Chairperson Cardone: Why don’t we start with the one in the front?

Mr. Staffon: The one that’s in the front?

Chairperson Cardone: Hm Hmm.

Mr. Staffon: O.K. The one that’s in the front is lawn and garden equipment.

Chairperson Cardone: I didn’t hear you.

Mr. Staffon: The one in the front is lawn and garden equipment, like lawn mowers.

Chairperson Cardone: Now going around to the back of the property. I don’t believe on any of the drawings all (6) six structures were shown.

Mr. Staffon: I believe I just added the two that were in contention. The one that was in the front yard should be depicted and also the last one that was depicted was the one that exceeded the maximum allowable square footage.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Let’s start from the front working toward the back, the contents of each of the sheds.

Mr. Staffon: The first one has the lawn and garden equipment in it. Then, the second one has additional lawn and garden equipment, like shovels and things like that. The third one contains recreational vehicles. And, then the fourth one contains additional recreational vehicles. And, then the fifth one contains additional recreational vehicles. 

Chairperson Cardone: The fifth one is the one with the garage door?

Mr. Staffon: Yes, that’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: What’s in the one with the electric service to it?

Mr. Staffon: There’s actually (2) two that have electric service. The first one has the lawn and garden equipment. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s the one in the front yard has electrical service?

Mr. Staffon: Yes, that’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: That’s the one out on Cloud Street? 

Mr. Staffon: Yes, right.

Mr. Hughes: And, the second one that has electric in it where?

Mr. Staffon: The …

Chairperson Cardone: The one with the garage door?

Mr. Staffon: No, the fourth one has electric service. 

Chairperson Cardone: The one next to that?

Mr. Staffon: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: There’s no water in any of these buildings?

Mr. Staffon: No.

Mr. Hughes: No plumbing?

Mr. Staffon: No plumbing, no.

Mr. Hughes: Just electric in the two.

Mr. Manley: I noticed a couple of trailers. What are the trailers used for?

Mr. Staffon: One trailer, which is enclosed, is for towing recreational vehicles and then the other one is, we haven’t used that in several years.

Mr. Manley: Do you happen, by any chance, to operate a lawn business or any type of business out of the home?

Mr. Staffon: No.

Chairperson Cardone: There was a very big truck there the day that I was there.

Mr. Staffon: Occasionally, I bring that home from the office.

Mr. Manley: What type of truck would that be, a box truck? 

Mr. Staffon: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And, for what type of business is the box truck used for?

Mr. Staffon: We deliver manufacture goods to different cities.

Mr. Manley: Is any of the equipment that you deliver ever stored on premises in any of the garages?

Mr. Staffon: No, never.

Chairperson Cardone: We’re talking about recreational vehicles, what type of recreational vehicles?

Mr. Staffon: You know, like motorcycles, my kids have a quad, snow mobiles.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: Is that the total square footage of all these buildings?  

Mr. Hughes: Nice place.

Mr. Staffon: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: You’re quite a bit over on the square footage. The total of the sheds is 1300 and you’re only allowed 1000.

Mr. McKelvey: 300 over.

Mr. Hughes: What do you have a couple of acres of land there?

Mr. Staffon: We have 2.7.

Mr. Hughes: 2.7?

Mr. Staffon: Something.

Mr. Kunkel: 2.9.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else, thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If you were to have to eliminate one of the sheds, which shed would that be?

Mr. Staffon: I would have to say, probably one of the ones with the lawn and garden equipment in it. Probably, number two.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that the 192 sq ft or is that the …?

Mr. Staffon: That one is about 10 x 12.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a 10 x 14 listed here and a 10 x 16.

Mr. Hughes: If you were facing the front of your house, there’s the one out in the front yard, where would it be going counter clockwise? To the right or to the left?

Mr. Staffon: Counter clockwise would be just beyond where the basketball court is. 

Mr. Manley: There seems to be a discrepancy on the square footage here. On the page that came from the Town …

Mr. Hughes: It says 1300.

Mr. Manley: There’s 1300, but the one that has the 192 sq ft is 12 x 16 and that one already has a permit. So, you would be loosing a shed that you already have a permit on.

Chairperson Cardone: Right now, according to the figures that I have, the ones that have permits total 748 sq ft. Do you get the same figure?

Mr. Manley: So, those are not ones that are really an issue?

Chairperson Cardone: The ones that are an issue are the ones that are 12 x 26 and 12 x 20 which is in the front yard.

Mr. Manley: And both of those are the ones that have electric, right? The 12 x 26, the 312 sq. ft. shed.

Mr. Staffon: The 12 x 26 does not. The one to the right of that does.

Chairperson Cardone: If that were eliminated it would be 988 sq. ft. Any other question or comments from the Board? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Staffon: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:35PM)

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:09PM)

RAYMOND G. & EILEEN STAFFON

3 CLOUD STREET, NWBH








(43-1-44) R-2 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Raymond G. and Eileen Staffon at 3 Cloud Street, seeking variances to keep two (2) prior built sheds, one in the front yard and for the total square footage of accessory structures for both sheds. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: He’s got two front yards there, because he is on a corner to begin with and only one of those sheds is in the front. Now, whether that’s critical to the operation there or not, I don’t know. But. it appears as though one of those sheds is going to have to disappear to be under the footage. 

Chairperson Cardone: I am of the same opinion. I think it’s really too much and it’s quite a bit over. The allowable footage is 1000 and he has 1300.

Mr. Manley: It’s a nice house and the amount of sheds detract from the appearance of the neighborhood. I think it definitely takes away from the neighborhood and the fact that, you know it’s unfortunate that had the applicant gone to the Building Department to receive the Permits prior to that, that they would have maybe caught that before he went to the expense.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: However, I concur with the other Board Members it’s excessive. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application? 

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone:  Do we have a motion for disapproval on this applications?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we disapprove.

Chairperson Cardone:  Do we have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote


John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes                                   

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion for disapproval is carried. 

(Time Noted - 10:11PM) 

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006                          (Time Noted 8:35PM)                          

ALDINO P. COATTI



28 WARING ROAD, NBGH










(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of Zoning Law Ordinance Sect. 185-19 A (4) Non-conforming buildings and uses-Discontinuance, and, a use variance for a non-conforming business use, in a Residential-3 (R-3) Zone, that was discontinued, and, an area variance.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant, which is held over from our September 28 meeting, Aldino Coatti, 28 Waring Road.

Mr. Gailey: Good evening. I am Ben Gailey I represent the applicant Mr. and Mrs. Coatti are here tonight. I am going to carry the mic, if you don’t mind; I have some submissions I’d like to make to the Board. I want to thank the Board, first, for keeping the Hearing open from last month to give us some opportunity to make a presentation. We do have a good bit of material here to give to the Board. I do want to say, first to that, we have put the, based on comments that we received last month at the Public Hearing we do take those very seriously. We have put the tenant on notice that we will be evicting the tenant if he doesn’t leave the premises. Not because we believe the use of the property is unlawful. But, simply because that particular tenant or his employees, based on the testimony we heard, is causing disturbances in the neighborhood. And, even if the comments made by the public at the last Hearing may not be completely accurate and I am not saying that they are not. But, even if half of what we heard is true, I mean, that’s no good. I know my clients were not aware of that, they don’t want that to continue and we have given this tenant eviction orders. As a matter of fact, as far back in July of ‘06, my client has other counsel, had given the tenant an eviction order. But, that other counsel never followed up on that. And, that’s why the tenant is still there and if the tenant is not out of there soon I have directions from my client to definitely follow up on that, start summary proceedings in Justice Court to evict them. So, we expect them to be out of there very soon. And, again the reason for that is to decease any disturbances that are occurring in the neighborhood. With that having been said, I want to get on to the issues of the ZBA. I mean we’re here because the Code Enforcement Officer issued a Violation Notice stating that the non-conforming use of the property, which was used for storage purposes, had discontinued for (1) one year and under your Code if that happens the use is deemed a non-conforming use, the non-conforming use is deemed abandoned. Now that Violation Notice was issued on May 30 of 2006, there’s no evidence from the Building Department as to that the use had ceased as of May 30, 2005. So, there’s really no evidence at all that there has ever been any cessation of the use of that building or use of that property for the commercial storage purposes. And, I don’t believe we heard any testimony last month to demonstrate that the use had ceased either. Now, what the property has been used for business purposes for years …

Chairperson Cardone: I think that it was used for storage purposes not business purposes.

Mr. Gailey: I’m sorry, I misspoke, storage purposes. But, not residential storage purposes, commercial storage purposes.

Neighbor #1: Absolutely not.

Chairperson Cardone:  Excuse me, we have to hear this testimony first and then members of the public will be invited to speak.

Mr. Gailey: We’re not claiming that a business was ever run out of that property per se and we have no intention. That’s not what Mr. & Mrs. Coatti never had any intention of running a business or having a tenant run a business out of there. But, it has been used for the storage for non-residential storage purposes traditionally and continually and we’ll demonstrate that tonight. The property at one time was used as an iron fabricating shop and I have a deed here from the surrounding, or from the neighboring property owned by Flannery which references the contiguous building, my clients’ building, stating it formerly used as an iron fabricating shop. This is a 1963 deed, and I’ll just give these to the Board. There’s about six or seven copies there, they are not stapled, there’s like three pages each. If you wouldn’t mind just passing that down. Now, the survey of the property, which we have also, the survey was prepared July 2002, also references the Flannery deed, the deed that I just handed out. And, which also references the contiguous building formerly used as an iron fabricating shop and if you wouldn’t mind, just taking one of those and passing those down, that’s the survey of the property. Now the prior, before my clients’ purchased the property in November of ’02, the prior owner was Neighbor #2. I have an affidavit here from my client stating that it’s his understanding anyway that Neighbor #2 used the property for storage purposes and not simply the storage of his own personal automobiles but also what was stored in there when my client took title was aluminum products as well as vehicles and it’s my clients understanding that Neighbor #2 operated a business off the site, not on the property, not on the neighboring property that he also owned at that time and stored his business products in that building. And, I’ll submit that affidavit to the Board as well.

Chairperson Cardone: What were those years again?

Mr. Gailey: Well, up until November of ’02 when my client purchased the property. 

Mr. Manley: You’re stating that your client purchased the property in November of 2002? 

Mr. Gailey: Correct.

Mr. Manley: And, has retained title to that property since November of 2002?

Mr. Gailey: Yeah, well about two years later, in November of ’02, Aldino Coatti purchased the property, it’s now owned by Kris and Al Realty which is Aldino and Kris Coatti. So, they have owned it since November of ’02. They just changed it to a LLC name a couple of years ago. Now, what we also have here is a record, records from Orange County records. These are Orange County tax records, this is dated December 17 of ’01 and this states the building was used for commercial motor vehicle service garage. Now this is an Orange County tax record, which I’ll pass out to the Board, stating that the building is used as a commercial motor vehicle service garage, the owner, Neighbor #2.

Mr. Manley: One other question.

Mr. Gailey: Sure. 

Mr. Manley: November 2002, the property was purchased by …?

Mr. Gailey: Aldino Coatti.

Mr. Manley: Correct. What did Mr. Coatti use the property for, from that point that he purchased it until …?

Mr. Gailey: I’m

Mr. Manley: Are you getting to that?

Mr. Gailey: I’m getting there.

Mr. Manley: O.K., I am trying to follow you.

Mr. Gailey: No, I understand. Now, just in terms of, as well as, how long, or up to what date prior to Mr. Coatti buying the property in November of ’02 that it was still used for storage purposes. You have Mr. Coatti’s affidavit, we also have here a consignment auction agreement signed by a Neighbor #3 who is a relative, obviously of Neighbor #2. This is dated April 3 of ’02 and although it doesn’t specify in this document, I only have one copy, which I’ll submit to the Board. It doesn’t specify in here exactly what is being auctioned off at that time, so, we really don’t know, he may have owned other property but I certainly think it’s fair to reason that some of that property being auctioned off was property that had been in this garage and I’ll submit that, for the Board, as well. I only have one of those. Now, Mr. Coatti is in the auto service business and his affidavit states and if you like, you can ask Mr. Coatti as well. Let me show you first what the condition of this property was in, in November of  ’02 and I think we submitted these photographs with the application. And, these may be identical to what we submitted before, but this will give you a good idea of the condition of this property in November of ’02. I mean it was a shambles, it was a hideous eyesore for the neighborhood and I don’t know whether there was complaints about it back at that time, but take a look, I know I wouldn’t want to live near there. As soon as Mr. Coatti bought it, in fact, 6 months before he purchased the property, in May, May 29 of ’02, he obtained an estimate and you can see the building, it was so bad there was trees growing out of this building. The entire property was completely overgrown and trashed, there was junk everywhere. I mean, the photos tell the story. And, even before he actually purchased it, in November of ’02, he had gotten an estimate to fix the roof because obviously the interior of the building would continue to deteriorate unless a roof were put on there. And, what I’ll submit to the Board is a letter dated May 29 of ‘02 from a company called Roofing and Sheet Metal Company, Inc. providing a solution to putting a proper roof on this building and also giving an estimate for that work. One of the first things that would have to happen is to remove the existing trees, plants, plywood, wood fiber and a metal deck. So, it gives you an idea again the condition of this building prior to the purchase by Mr. And Mrs. Coatti and I’ll submit this letter as well. I think that’s a two-page letter there. 

Mr. Manley: Is it the testimony of your client that the condition of the building prior to 2002 is the condition in which is depicted in those pictures?

Mr. Gailey: I believe that’s correct, well in the pictures that you have in November of ’02. Do you want the before pictures?

Mr. Coatti: What we are stating there with the before pictures, that’s already after I started removing a lot of the stuff, that was like after I owned the property for a few weeks or months. The original pictures were much, much worse than you see right there. 

Mr. Manley: But, that was the condition of the property when it was purchased?

Mr. Coatti: It was overgrown and untidy at least for 15 years.

Mr. Manley: In November of 2002?

Mr. Coatti: Yes, when I purchased it.

Mr. Manley: O.K. And, you are?

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just identify yourself for the record?

Mr. Coatti: I’m Aldino Coatti.

Ms. Eaton: Why did you purchase it? For what use, what use did you purchase it for?

Mr. Gailey: For commercial storage purchases. I was just about to say that Mr. Coatti is in the auto service business and as soon as he was able to put that building in a condition that it could be used for any purpose at all, and, obviously when a building is in this condition it can’t be used. Certainly, there is no intention to discontinue any use; it’s impossible to use that building for anything at all. So, as soon as he purchased it, or like I said, even before he purchased it he was making plans to repair the building and to remedy the property and as soon as he was able to and he immediately started making these repairs as well. And, we have dates and expenses that I will submit for that. As soon as he was able to put the building in condition that it could be used, he would then store his own customers, he is in the auto service business, he would store cars of his own customers, he’s down in Rockland County, in that building. So, that would continue the commercial storage use of that building where the business itself is off the site, just like the prior owner, but there was storage in there, commercial storage related to that off site business.

Chairperson Cardone: At that point, when he was using it for storage for the off site business, I would imagine there would have to be some kind of delivery or pick up of those items that were being stored. How often did that happen before this current company started renting the building?

Mr. Coatti: Maybe three or four times a year, at the most.

Mr. Gailey: These were customer’s cars.

Mr. Coatti: We’d bring them up, usually on weekends and put them away. There was boats stored there and cars.

Mr. Manley: What was the reasoning behind switching from that to allowing the sunroom people to come in rent the property instead of …?

Mr. Coatti: Well, initially, I’d like to make a better profit on the property. Because I wasn’t making any and I put a lot of money into it. And, I thought the sunroom, I had advertised it for storage and he had one of his employees lived in the neighborhood, I believe he still does and I was under the, I thought, under the, with the storage, “storage”, I could use it for storage that it would be fine do that because all he was going to do was store his equipment in there and possibly a truck or two and they come, but the biggest problem was with the delivery and some of what we heard from last meeting, the public didn’t like, the people that live in the area don’t like the way he does things there with the trucks, the big truck being delivered. So, that’s why we have Noticed him, he is being evicted.

Mr. McKelvey: I wasn’t at the last meeting, but I’ve read the minutes and I know what everybody said. This storage business he had in there now, that seems like they were running a business in that area. They weren’t storing. They were running a business.

Mr. Coatti: I am aware of what everybody was lead to believe. He’s told me he was going to get two deliveries per month. From what the comments were, at least four deliveries is what, I understand is, he is getting a month. He is putting his materials in there and his men were coming and taking the materials out, his inventory was in there and he is removing it to go on jobs. He’s got, as you can see in the one picture, his display trailers on the property which is a licensed trailer and that’s what I was told he was going to do it for. I didn’t know the impact from the neighborhood would be so so negative. So, that’s why we have him removed. And, I can tell by the electric bills that I pay for the building, since he has been in there, the electric has only gone up like $20 to $25 per month. So, he can’t be running a business out of there and doing anything electric that would not only impact the electric bill by that little amount.

Chairperson Cardone: I noticed several cars on the property with out-of-state plates on them.

Mr. Coatti: They were his workers. They went there in the morning and picked up their work trucks and went to work.

Mr. McKelvey: To me, that’s running a business. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: To me, that’s running a business. They’re coming there and going out and doing a job.

Mr. Gailey: His business office was not there.

Mr. Coatti: O.K. I agree …

Mr. Gailey: His customers were not there; he is storing his materials there. His employees come, pick up the inventory, take it out and do the job.

Chairperson Cardone: After this tenant is evicted, what are your plans for the building?

Mr. Coatti: Number one, if I can still afford to keep it, I’m going to store cars and boats there again or if I can get a suitable tenant that will not impact the neighborhood the way it is, for automobile or say, boat storage or the other thing is I’ll be forced to sell the building and the property, obviously.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have anything further?

Mr. Gailey: Yes, I have.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. continue.

Mr. Manley: A few more items there.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll get to you in a little while, he must continue first.

Mr. Gailey: Mr. Coatti has put over $80,000 into that building. He’s put over $70,000 in hard costs alone, in terms of doors, the roof, electrical work, just necessary structural repairs and all the work in cleaning up the property and hauling material away and disposing it. We have a printout here with dates, vendors, amounts; the total is $83,265.94 and doing this in reliance on the non-conforming use of a commercial storage use of a property and I’ll pass out this printout as well. And, what I’ll also show you is the, I am sure you know what the property looks like. These were the after photographs. I mean it’s a nice garage; it’s a really nice building. And, a Certificate of Occupancy was issued then by the Town Building Department, January 8 of ’04, it says on here Garage is for Storage Use Only, it does not limit the type of storage in any way. It does not say residential storage. It says for storage use. The prior use has always been a commercial storage use and that’s what we are continuing here. And, I’ll submit the Certificate of Occupancy. So, this is a general storage use building. With respect to the interpretation by the Board or the appeal of the Building Inspector’s determination that the non-conforming use had been ceased, I think the documents we’ve submitted including Mr. Coatti’s affidavit and testimony tonight, which is obviously credible and knowledgeable, demonstrates that that non-conforming use has never been discontinued. In the alternative, we applied for a use variance from the Zoning Code to continue as a commercial storage building. You know, the primary components of a use variance, or the primary component is that you’d suffer an unnecessary hardship by denying that variance and what we have here is a property owner who bought the property taking it’s current use and choosing to continue that use and improving the property to a tune of $83,000 in order to do so. There is no other use that can reasonably be made of that building other than the commercial storage use and right, and that’s the key to a use variance. Another important component to a use variance is detriment to the neighborhood and we are aware of the disturbance to the neighborhood caused by the prior tenant. But, that particular tenant shouldn’t be used against Mr. Coatti. It’s the use of the property, which has to be considered, and not the particular user and we had an unfortunate tenant in this instance. Although, the use of the property by that tenant was commercial storage; it’s just unfortunate that the tenants’ employees or perhaps the nature of his storage was such that it caused undue disturbance to the neighborhood and we don’t want that to happen either. But, we meet the standards for a use variance in the event the Board finds the non-conforming commercial storage use had not been continued, as the Code requires. That’s all we have for now.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Well, I’d like to know how, when you can show me this, you can tell me there wasn’t a discontinuance of operating a business out of that, which is kind of a mystery in itself? (holding up a picture of the junk in the building) And, I’d like to know how you can explain that?

Mr. Gailey: Well, you can see that there was still junk being stored in there.

Mr. Hughes: But, there was no business operating there.

Mr. Gailey: No, no. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s not at issue.

Mr. Gailey: That’s the point.

Chairperson Cardone: The issue is storage.

Mr. Gailey: Exactly, exactly. We are not claiming a business; we don’t want to run a business, we never ran a business out of it.

Mr. Hughes: And, on the Certificate of Occupancy it says for storage only, it doesn’t say for commercial storage.

Mr. Gailey: You’re right. It doesn’t say for residential storage either, general storage use.

Mr. Hughes: So, if you’re use variance is requesting specifically storage that might be one thing but, commercial storage is another.

Mr. Gailey: Well, if all we’re seeking is residential storage, we wouldn’t even be here tonight. There’s no house on the property obviously. There’s no point to residential storage.

Mr. Hughes: This is in a residential zone. 

Mr. Gailey: That’s correct. But, it’s a two-part argument.

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Mr. Gailey: Number one, the commercial storage never ceased. Number two, if the Board determines that it has, then we are seeking a use variance and we meet those standards for commercial storage of the residential property. Per what Mr. Coatti wants to do, he wants to go back to storing cars and boats in there unless he can find a tenant who would have a

equally less or equally non-intrusive storage use of the property. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? We heard quite a bit of testimony from the neighbors last month. What I would ask for this time is not a repetition of what we heard last month, but if you have anything new to add, please state your name and address. Yes. Could you take the microphone please? And, state your name and address please.

Neighbor #4, I have two questions. The first, I don’t know if it was the day after or two days after the last Board meeting, I ran into Mr. Manley. You had driven down the street, we were talking and it was obvious that there were electrical tools being used inside the garage. And, it seemed pretty evident that they were doing fabrication work inside the building. Which leads me to believe they were doing assembly work as well. And, I know Mr. Manley, you heard it as well as I did, because we were both kind of taken back.

Mr. Manley: Yes, I did.

Neighbor #4: The other question I have, I believe that when Mr. Coatti purchased the property, my husband spoke to him and we were under the assumption that you purchased all three of the lots because you were going to build your own home on that property originally. And, you have since then sold two of them, is that correct?

Mr. Coatti: I combined the other lot, which is not at issue right now, and I sold that for a house, someone to build a house on it. I sold it as one building lot. (inaudible) things changed, something happened in our family and that’s why I decided not to build a house on that property. 

Neighbor #4: O.K. and I don’t mean to offend you but I think if that you had purchased that property and had built your own home there, you would be our neighbor and you would feel the same way that we do at this point. So, I think that’s what we are trying to ask you to understand.

Mr. Gailey: We do understand that, that’s why we’re evicting that tenant. That tenant is gone.

Audience: As of when?

Mr. Gailey: We had told him to be out by, when did we tell him by what did we tell him to be out by, immediately is what we told him. 

Audience: Still there tonight by 6:00.

Mr. Gailey: No, no, I know. By law, we can’t actually go to Court against him until December 1st.

Audience: That’s more than a whole month.

Mr. Gailey: That’s not our doing, that’s just, that’s the legal system.  

Neighbor #4: Well, at any rate, I do want to state that I feel that your tenant has misled you and they are doing fabrication work in the building. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other?

Mr. Gailey: I would like to add to that, if that’s going on, Mr. Coatti has no knowledge of that and certainly has not consented to that and that’s taking place without his consent as over his objection.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #5, and I just want to go back to the prior use issue and Neighbor #2 lived across the street, so, he used that for personal storage. It was never commercial. My garage is for, I have siding, I have windows, furniture, it’s my personal storage that was. He was directly across the street, so that was never ever continued commercial, from ’63, I think you said. Thank you.

Mr. Gailey: The Orange County records that we submitted that show that the property is used for a commercial motor storage owned by Neighbor #2, it says that Neighbor #2 address is Robinson Avenue. So, evidently at that time he was not living across the street.

Neighbor #1: He certainly was.

Chairperson Cardone:  Excuse me, we can only hear one person at time, yes.

Neighbor #1: I am Mrs. Neighbor #2, Mr.

Neighbor #6, she was the former owner of the property, she’ll tell you what the building was used for.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Neighbor #6: What these guys are doing is blowing smoke. Bottom line, that’s what they are doing. This guy lies, this guy will swear to it, because there is a personal thing to be obtained, O.K. The bottom line is this; they’re using it for a commercial business. He has been notified over a year now that this has been going on and he’s been doing nothing about it, because he doesn’t care about anything else except what he’s going to line his pocket with. Bottom line. He is abusing the neighborhood. He’s lowering the values of the homes and it’s direct affect on the quality of life in that neighborhood. Now, if I may, he did have to fill out this application, correct? 

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm.

Neighbor #6: So, I would like to ask him, if an area variance is requested, the variance will not produce an undesirable change in the character in the neighborhood or a deterrent to the nearby properties, because of why? What was the answer to that question?

Chairperson Cardone: The attorney would respond to that.

Neighbor #6: Excuse me, but, it was written down somewhere, right?

Mr. Gailey: Yeah, we submitted that and we answered all those questions.

Neighbor #6: And the answer is?

Mr. Gailey: The Board has it. But, again it goes to the use of the property and not this particular tenant. And, we know the public believes that this particular has caused a detriment, but the commercial storage use of the property doesn’t necessarily cause a detriment. In fact, when Mr. Coatti was using it for commercial storage, there was no complaints at all and no detriment to the neighborhood.

Neighbor #6: No, there was a complaint.

Mr. Gailey: One other comment I would like to make if this gentleman called ...

Neighbor #6: Excuse me; I don’t think it was his turn to talk, was it?

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, but excuse me.

Mr. Gailey: No, I need to respond.

Chairperson Cardone:  I cannot have people arguing back and forth. One person at a time, you asked a question, it was answered. Now, you continue.

Neighbor #6: This has been complained about since over a year ago. It’s on record, the Code Compliance Department knows about it, the Police Department knows about it. So, if they are saying they don’t know about it, the Police Department didn’t do their job or these guys are lying. One or the other, that’s the way it is. I said, he put $83,000 according to him into that building, I put $75,000 in my house, does that mean I can turn it into a hotel? I don’t think so. Can I go out on Powder Mill Road and open up the Powder Mill again if I fix it up? I don’t think so. That building was not used since 1963 for any commercial purposes and on top of that the Code specifically states that if you have a private garage it cannot be used as a warehouse to gain income, it’s right in the Code. He is asking you to break the law.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #6: Oh, I will be back.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I would like to hear from the lady who said that she lived across the street.

Neighbor #1, and I don’t really have a heart attack over this but tonight I am close to it. Number one, why did this gentleman buy this decrepit building? I’ll tell you why because it’s a valuable piece of property and he paid $60,000 for his investment, right? He’s already sold off two building lots. For years people called me about those building lots. They are that valuable. I am sorry he spent so much money on our decrepit building. It must have been a very strong building though. $80,000? You can hardly build a chicken coup today for $80,000 and don’t tell me it was ever used for our business. Number one, we didn’t run that kind of business. Everything we sold was custom made and it was delivered right to the owners, the buyer’s house. Why did he from the beginning think it was commercial, when I told him from get go it wasn’t? Oh, his very words were, let it industry? I say anh, anh (no). He’s not from; he’s from someplace else. He had no intentions of ever building a home on that property and two building lots have already been sold off. According to my taxes, there were six (6) building lots. That doesn’t mean you could build a house on each one of them. And, in the future, how is somebody going to build houses on these two building lots that just got sold with the building in the rear? Let me go back a little further. Mr. Libby Russell in the ‘50’s forged the iron for Gardnertown School in that building. Well, it was an obnoxious business, of course, in a residential area. And, the neighbors got together; at that time I wasn’t living there yet, and put him out of business. The man got so upset he had a heart attack and died. So, that’s the history of this building. It should have been torn down when my husband died but it wasn’t. This man thought he could get away with running a business in it. What he could do with it is sell storage in the building, storage from banks, from churches. It’s a very lucrative business today. Obviously he hasn’t heard about that, but that could be done since he put $80,000 into the building. If he put that much into it, he’s already made double that with just selling two lots. So, there’s no hardship here whatsoever and don’t think there is. There is none. And, yes, I owned the building for a long time and we stored our antique autos in it, never any business. Because we were told from the get go Mr. Russell who owned the building died over it. So, therefore, you cannot run a business in that building. And, especially an obnoxious building with tractor trailers coming in and out. Who would want that? And, how is he going to sell building lots with this building in the background? It should have been torn down.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other new information? First this gentleman over here and then this lady over here.

Neighbor #7: Alright, on the dead end side. I wasn’t here at the last meeting and up until a few days ago, I really didn’t have an opinion one way or the other. However, in conjunction with what Neighbor #1 is saying, yes, Libby Russell that’s how I knew him, because I grew up in that area, as a teenager and so forth. But, he built the building as an iron works and at that time I remember distinctly there was a petition circulated through the neighborhood that ultimately dissolved his working in that area, because it is a residential area. Number two, the other day, I still live there, my mother is 91, she’s lived there for near 100 years, but anyway, I took her up the road and what is there but a tractor trailer on the side of the road. And, on a different day, where I live there is a dead end down at the bottom of the hill, here’s this tractor trailer that went down the hill apparently not knowing it was dead end and had to back up all the way up to wherever he was going to this gentleman’s garage. Now, I have another point to make, apparently there was a grate in the roadway that was broken by one of these heavy trucks. Now these heavy trucks, we have central water and central sewage, it’s not meant to be a commercial area with heavy, heavy trucks running over it. If these pipes break who is going to pay for it, all us taxpayers? You know I think it’s ridiculous. There was never to my knowledge, and like I said I grew up there, after Libby Russell vacated the premises, it was never used commercially. All right.  It may have been used as storage or whatever and that was it. But, like I said, twice now I’ve seen and I’m talking tractor-trailers coming in.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to ask the lady that was up there before, when did you stop storing the antique autos in that building?

Neighbor #1: Pardon?

Chairperson Cardone: What is the date that you stopped storing the antique autos in that building? 

Neighbor #1: I don’t know the exact date, they were all sent to auction after my husband died, he died in 1999, a couple, probably two years later they were sent to auction and sold.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Yes.

Mrs. Coatti: I am Kris Coatti, part owner of the building. And, one thing, we bought the building from__________. She is the wife, the legal wife, not ...

Neighbor #1: We were divorced.

Mrs. Coatti: Divorced, her husband, she was no longer and we bought it from her and we paid much more than $62,000.

Neighbor #1: That’s what she said what she got for it.

Mrs. Coatti: Well, I’m sorry if you want to look it up.

Chairperson Cardone: All right. Let’s not discuss that right now.

Mrs. Coatti: We personally, we did want to build a house on that property. But, in all honesty, we did. We liked the area, we were very happy with it and we were just going to use the building as storage. But, something came up within the family and we cannot. We have to be actually down in Nanuet to take care of his 91-year-old mother. So, we decided, we had to sell it and we had no intentions, yes I agree with all of you I wouldn’t want that tractor-trailer in my backyard. I wouldn’t want those workers either and we will get rid of them.

Neighbor #1: I bet you wouldn’t want that building in your backyard either.

Mrs. Coatti: I have a building like that in my backyard.

Chairperson Cardone: Let’s not have conversation back and forth, please address all comments to the Board.

Ms. Coatti: I just want you to know that she is not the legal wife.

Neighbor #1: I was his legal wife for forty years.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, the lady in the back please. 

Neighbor #8: Mrs. Cardone, Members of the Board, Neighbor #8. I have a little bit of a problem listening to all this. I understand what this lawyer is saying, I understand what this gentleman next to him is saying. I have a letter here. There is a court case that my husband and I followed with the Town. And, this one is dated on the 15th of July, sorry March, 2005 and it’s a decision, order and verdict from Judge Clarino. Mrs. Martini’s husband works with Judge Clarino, Judge Martini. It talks about Town Code and occupations that are allowed in a residential area. And, in here it says, there are certain things that are allowable, art studios, dressmaking, clergy, lawyer, physician, dentist, architect, real estate, accountant. I don’t understand how we’re getting off base here. We are allowing businesses, commercial businesses in residential areas?  These people love their homes as I do mine. Who is allowing this? Who is giving people permission to have commercial businesses in residential areas? Is that this Board? I don’t understand.

Chairperson Cardone: When a person wants to have a use of a property that’s not in the Zoning Code, they come before the Zoning Board in order to get a variance. Once they have a variance, which is what this applicant is seeking, if the interpretation does not go the way that they want it to go, they’re seeking a variance. If they received a variance, if they met the criteria to receive a variance, then they would be able to use it in the manner that they’re requesting. If they were not able to get the variance then they would not be. That’s true with all issues that come before this Board; they are people seeking relief from the current regulations.  

Neighbor #8: But, why does a Judge, hired, working for me, working for the Town of Newburgh say that businesses that involve a lot of noise, that as Neighbor #6 said affects our way of life, traffic that’s hazardous, why does the Judge say it’s illegal, it’s unlawful. I don’t …

Chairperson Cardone: He is stating a particular case; we would have to know all of the facts of that particular case.

Neighbor #8: No, no it’s in the Code. It’s in the Code. It says that, what you can have and what you can’t have and how when you live in a residential area you are entitled to certain rules, regulations and it’s illegal and I still don’t understand. It’s by the Code. I didn’t think any Board could supersede the Code. I thought you had to change the Code.

Chairperson Cardone: The purpose of a Zoning Board and I have stated this before. The purpose of a Zoning Board is for applicants to seek relief from the current Zoning Code, that’s the whole purpose of a Zoning Board. Everyone that comes before us is not in compliance with what the Zoning Code calls for so, they come to this Board to get relief.

Neighbor #8: So, then maybe this is wrong what he wrote?

Mr. McKelvey: Did he write it on a case? He had to write it on a case.

Neighbor #8: He wrote it on a case but he always judged, from what I understand with the Court Clerks they have great respect for him, because he always cites something from the Law, the Town Code. He’ll always put something in it. And, he’ll say this is illegal because it’s here, it’s section …

Chairperson Cardone: We’re not here tonight to debate the Judge’s decision on a particular case. 

Neighbor #8: No, you’re right.

Chairperson Cardone: First of all, we do not have all the information about this case.

Neighbor #8: You’re absolutely right, I agree.

Chairperson Cardone: We have other things that we have to attend to tonight; we can only address this issue tonight.

Neighbor #8: That is their issue; they don’t want a business in their residential area.

Chairperson Cardone:  And, we understand that.

Neighbor #8: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And, at no point, and I want to clarify this again, I’ve said it several times, we are not discussing whether or not there should be a business. There should not be a business. We are talking about storage, that’s the issue that’s before us, it’s storage. Yes.

Neighbor #9: Talking about storage.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Neighbor #9:  O.K. Let’s just say you give him the O.K. to do this. O.K.? And, starts storing boats and cars, so, you’re talking gasoline, you’re talking oil, you’re talking chemicals, whatever. Trucks in and out still, we have that happening, we live right next door. There were cars and trucks, things parked outside, things parked inside. It doesn’t matter. I am asking you. That it’s our neighborhood. If you let him do this, you give him this much, it’s going to go to this much. O.K. You are going to wind up with a garage full of vehicles that he doesn’t own that he is making money off of and that’s a business. O.K.    

That is still a business. If it’s his own personal stuff, like Neighbor #1’s ex-husband did, that’s one thing. But, then you’re then allowing him to do that which means you are going to allow everybody else in here to start doing things out of their garages. My point is, is that it’s a residential area, storage for his own personal use like they all did in the past that’s one thing, but taking profit from this and having cars and boats still going past my kitchen window all hours of the day and night is wrong. This is my neighborhood. This is out my kitchen window. We are not even talking about what happened, what’s happening now, we’re talking about allowing someone who does not live in this Town to do what he, you’re going to let him do what he wants. And, the last time he wanted storage; he had a huge sign up there, Storage Space For Rent until Wayne Booth called somebody and told him he can’t do that. So, this is what we’re going to live with. You give him an inch and he is going to take a yard. I know he spent money on it, but do you know how much money we spent on our house and everybody here fixing up their houses, a lot. These are our homes. This is not his home. It’s a garage. So, I am just asking please to re-think this. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: We have not made any decisions. When you say rethink…

Neighbor #9: I know, I know, well or just think this is how we feel, any kind of compensation, financial, cars still coming in and out, boats, chemicals. There are chemicals in there. Has the Fire Department ever gone in and checked that? You can’t do this. We all have smoke alarms. If there was a chemical explosion in that building for some reason, do you know what it would do to that neighborhood? Including my house that we put all new windows in. All I am just asking is that you just think that it has not been used for any type of, anything but personal storage in the last 50 years and to please keep it that way that he can only store his own personal stuff in there. That is all I am asking. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Yes.

Neighbor #10:  basically around the corner, a slight distance from this site. I believe that it’s been demonstrated and testified here that between sometime prior to 1999 and at least until 2 years thereafter, the building was used for the storage of personal property. It’s my understanding of the Town Code that any prior non-conforming uses a structure or a piece of property in the Town of Newburgh ceases with a discontinuance of that use for a period of eighteen (18) months. I believe that it’s been demonstrated by the neighbors of this property and prior owners of this property that the commercial use of the property prior to the storage of personal vehicles was indeed a greater period of time that eighteen (18) months. So, therefore I would encourage the Board to consider this not as an interpretation of an existing prior use issue but to indeed think that the prior use in the non-conformance had gone away from the property with the storage of personal vehicles for a period greater than eighteen (18) months. Notwithstanding the tax records which may date back to the 1950’s or ‘60’s which may indicate that it was once used for a commercial use. Those tax records do not follow the day-to-day use of a property. They’re updated with transitions and records and upon request of the owners of those properties based upon what they want to use it for. The tax records in Orange County will not be up-to-date with regards to the current use, which the Town Code references with regards to not pre-existing non-conforming uses. So, therefore the issue before this Board would be the granting of a use variance for a commercial use of a property within a residential zone. I firmly would, as a resident of the community, discourage this Board from that type of determination and I would request that if the Board does determine that a use variance should be granted that they attach conditions which can be put upon the variance such that the Site Plan would be subject to Planning Board review and approval and that the building be subject to the design considerations which would be in effect should as if this was considered a separate commercial zone that abutted a residential zone and all of the applicable screening and  buffer requirements that are required in that instance be met by this applicant should he continue or desire to use this as a commercial use. It’s also my understanding that the variance if granted for a commercial use goes with the property and not with the proposed ownership or the current ownership or the proposed use at this time but the commercial variance or variance for use as a commercial property would continue with the property past the current owner, past the current tenant and therefore subject the Town of Newburgh to a changing of the commercial use which maybe subject to future site plan revisions if necessary, but it would be an ongoing problem in that once it’s granted as a commercial property it would be there for its entirety. And, I think that it’s really an unfair burden on the residential nature of the neighborhood to do this without the prior setbacks in accordance. If he can meet the 100 foot buffer requirements that commercial properties are put through in building adjacent to commercial properties in commercial zones, then the Board may consider that or the Planning Board may consider that’s enough of a buffer and enough of a mitigation that the commercial use could go on. However, on a small piece of property where the building occupies a large percentage of the property, the associated parking and access occupies the rest of the property I really don’t think it’s warranted in this instance. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you, Neighbor #10. Do we have any additional information? 

Neighbor #6: Just one other thing, I understand what he was saying before that they are trying to get their tenant out and it would be another month before they could get him to Court. I am asking the panel tonight to do the same thing I asked them last month which was to shut them down tonight and close that building up as far as that business being run. You’d actually be doing them a favor. And, he should agree to that, if you’d be willing to do that for them and I know the neighborhood would appreciate and we wouldn’t have to deal it and it would save them a lot of money, because they wouldn’t have to take them to Court. That’s all.

Chairperson Cardone: We cannot legally do that. We cannot legally do that. Yes.

Mr. Gailey: Just a brief response to some of the comments that were made. I think the testimony tonight demonstrates, in fact, that the property was used for commercial storage continuously up until the time the Coatti’s bought it. I think Neighbor #1 testified to that fact, as a matter of fact, with respect to her ex-husband’s business. She also stated that certainly there’d be some commercial storage. She mentioned storage for banks and churches that may not be objectionable on that property. There’s comments tonight about objections to the profits that the Coattis might have made on adjoining lots, that’s completely irrelevant to the Board’s decision. The tractor-trailers we agree, that’s not suited, that’s not going to happen. The comments were made about complying with the buffer requirements and the setback requirements, it’s a pre-existing building and you look at the survey, the building extends. It takes up very little of the lot actually, contrary to the prior statement. But it extends from one sideline to the other just about. So, you really can’t buffer it. You can put some shrubs along the one side I suppose but you can’t meet the buffer requirements, 100 ft requirements, nor is it required to under your Code since it’s a pre-existing building. And, I think that addresses all of the comments that have just been made. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any further information? Yes.

Neighbor #7: I would just like to say one thing.

Ms. Gennarelli: Sir, could you just use the mic please?

Chairperson Cardone: It has to go into the records.

Neighbor #7:  I was going to be very quick.

Ms. Gennarelli: I am sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: I’m sorry.

Neighbor #7:  The other thing I wanted to point out as being in a residential area, O.K., in especially from the corner of this building, down to the dead-end part. There’s an awful lot of kids that use that area to get access to the park. O.K. And, they are constantly up and down that road on their bicycles, walking in groups and so forth. And, I think that’s a consideration you want to think about, O.K., in terms of what kind of traffic you want on those roads. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Coatti: Could I make one more comment?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Coatti: It was mentioned that peoples think we should tear the building down, they want it down, before I bought it, no one’s commented how it looked that whole corner, that yard or where the building was or how overgrown it was and how much junk was all over everything, abandoned cars out on the lawn, car parts.

Neighbor #1:  No there wasn’t.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We are not going to argue this back and forth.

Mr. Coatti: This is my own comment, and also, as far as the kids walking through that I know the school buses used to use the one property or people are parked to pick up the kids for school. After I bought the property I talked to a few neighbors, it is not a problem with it, it never has been on my end. Now the property is leased, you can see the building, the lawn where I own now is mowed. The other piece where I had it was always mowed and taken care of and I picked up, you don’t know how many garbage cans full of soda cans, bottles, juice bottles and every other darn thing that was thrown on that property that I used to go up on weekends and clean up and all the underbrush that was all under there with all the junk that was thrown over the years. No ones commented on that, obviously they are not happy they would like to seen it all overgrown and disheveled before I bought it. Thank you.

Neighbor #9:

  I live next door. I moved in before he fixed it up. I’ll take that crappy looking building before I stand to have trucks, people, men, boats, trucks and everything else that would go in there. So, I’ll trade back to what he’s saying, to let go, than to have the hassle and the aggravation that we’ve been going through over the last year. Sleepless nights. You know those guys they are renting it to now; they’re there at 5:00 in the morning now. O.K. So, like he said, nobody complained, no, because it was just a wooded area with a lot of brush in it and nobody cared. You couldn’t see it and nobody cared. So, I’d go back to that. I’ll trade. You want to leave it that way, close it up, let it go back that way, we’d all be very happy. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #11:  and I grew up in the neighborhood and I know what the building was and in fact, when I was a kid I was one of the ones who would go break the windows and crawl in. But, that building has been run down for a long time and as far as being used for storage, yeah it was, but the roof leaked and everything, so what was good inside, nothing. Storage was no good because the roof leaked. So, whatever was in there they really didn’t care about otherwise they would have fixed it a long time ago. So, commercial storage, no.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other comments? Any comments from the Board? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted 9:35PM)  
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Aldino Coatti at 28 Waring Road in Newburgh. First we will deal with the interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance Section 185-19-A.

Mr. Manley: Well, we’ve certainly heard a lot of testimony over the last two months from the neighbors as well as from the applicant. The applicant himself stated that when he purchased the property it was extremely overgrown. In fact, the applicant produced to us, to this Board and to the public, photos of the property prior to it being renovated and indicated that indeed those pictures are better than what the building looked like before he started cleaning it up. Which indicates to me that the building was in extreme disrepair, holes in the roof. We had testimony from a number of individuals that indicated that in fact there were holes in the roof as far back as they could remember. It’s at least from my interpretation that this building was pretty much run down and in a condition that nothing could be stored in that building whether it be any type of property, cars, anything. The photos even show a lot of what appears to just be just junk that is by age that’s been sitting there so long it’s rusted and deteriorated. So, I don’t see that …

Chairperson Cardone: From the testimony, there’s holes in the roof, that the rain going in would allow for any storage, any reasonable storage.

Mr. Manley: Right. I don’t just see how, you know, storage could have continued as long as the applicant has indicated it continued. 

Mr. Hughes: I agree with Mr. Manley and I don’t think that there was a continuance of any nature that existed in that building on that property from ‘99 to ’04 or somewhere in that vicinity. And, as far as my understanding of the request for the interpretation, I don’t see that there was any continuity there at all.

Mr. Kunkel: I agree with my fellow Board Members and also would like to remind that Mr. Coatti, in his own words, when he was showing us the pictures of the condition of the property just after he purchased it. In his own words, he said, and these pictures don’t show any where near the run down condition of the property on the day that I purchased it because I put several months of clean up into this before these pictures were taken. So, it was much worse than it was shown on those pictures.

Mr. McKelvey: I have to agree with my other Board Members.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for a positive interpretation that there has been continuous use? 

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion stating that there was a discontinuance of use according to 185-19-A?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Eaton & Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The next issue is the applicant not receiving the interpretation desired was seeking a use variance. This is an unlisted action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a negative declaration?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion for a negative dec.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: I know that there’ll be discussion on this application and I would like to remind the Board of the criteria that’s used in the granting of a use variance which is certainly more restrictive than an area variance. With a Use Variance, these criteria must all be met: cannot realize a reasonable return substantial as shown by competent financial evidence. I would like discussion on this point, please. 

Mr. Hughes: We really received no affirmative supported evidences that the applicant couldn’t get a return on his land the way it is right not. It was stated in the testimony, certain figures that were validated as the discussion continued that apparently he paid a considerable amount of money for the building. And, it is a building lot in a residential district. There is water and sewer and try to find a residential lot with residential water and sewer for less than $100,000 and I don’t think there is a financial restraint here that he’s compelled and I believe it’s his burden of proof to indicate that. 

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct. 

Mr. Hughes: So, having no evidences there in support of monetary evidences I think that he missed on that one alone.

Chairperson Cardone: The alleged hardship is unique and does not apply to substantial portion of the district or neighborhood. Certainly that criteria was met, but as I said all four must be met. Do I have any discussion on that?

Mr. Kunkel: I do agree with the conclusion that the hardship factor hasn’t been …

Chairperson Cardone: It’s not the personal hardship; we haven’t got to that yet. We are just talking about if it’s unique in the neighborhood, which it is. The requested variance will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood, discussion on this.

Mr. Hughes: I think it certainly would change the character of the neighborhood, there’s no one else there operating a business or storage and it was very evident by the neighborhood.

Chairperson Cardone: Traffic was an issue.

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Chairperson Cardone: Safety was an issue.

Mr. McKelvey: Trucks, safety.

Mr. Hughes: The health and welfare for the children was an issue and the large trucks were an issue as well.

Chairperson Cardone: The alleged hardship, criteria number four, the alleged hardship has not been self-created. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t think it was self-created, the man certainly knows what land values are worth and he bought the property knowing the existing circumstances there and should have looked into it before he invested his money and made a bad decision.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any further discussion?

Mr. Manley: I’d like to go back to number one, cannot realize a reasonable return shown by competent financial evidence. Even giving the applicant some leeway, Mr. Hughes made the point that if that piece of property were to be sold with water and sewer available and he were to put a small modular house in there and then use that garage as a garage like most people normally would do on a residential piece of property, I am sure he could get a decent return on that, on that lot itself. So, perhaps that’s why the applicant didn’t tend to show us that with competent financial evidence by going out and getting an appraisal of the property. What’s it worth if they were to sell it? So, I really think that in itself is a big factor, the way I’m looking at it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: I move that it be disapproved.

Mr. Manley: Second.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call 

Ms. Gennarelli: 
John McKelvey

Mr. McKelvey: Just for the record, I wasn’t at the meeting last month, but I did read the minutes and I heard all the hearings tonight and I will vote. Yes.  

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried. 

(Time Noted 10:23PM)  

ZBA MEETING – OCTOBER 26, 2006                                (Time Noted – 10:24PM)

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

KRISHNA K. DIXIT, M.D.


338 MEADOW AVENUE, NBGH







(66-1-3) IB ZONE

REQUEST FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE DECISION AND RESOLUTION TO ERECT ADDITION ON EXISTING BUILDING.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next item on the Agenda is Krishna Dixit. And for the record I will read the letter. Dear Chairwoman Cardone and Members of the Zoning Board, 

I am writing this correspondence on behalf of my client, Krishna K. Dixit, M.D., regarding the Area Variances granted by your Board on April 27, 2006 for the proposed addition to his office building on Meadow Avenue. Dr. Dixit respectfully request a 6-month extension to the Area Variances granted by your Zoning Board. As he has not received the written Decision and Resolution from your Board, he cannot return to the Planning Board to resume his application for Site Plan Approval. It is the policy of the Planning Board to have your Board’s decision in writing before being considered for approval. For this reason I ask that you act favorably upon this request. Thank you for your consideration of this request, Very truly yours, Shaw Engineering, Gregory J. Shaw.

Mr. Manley: I would make a motion that we extend the request.

Chairperson Cardone: Right now, we are entertaining a motion for just discussion, because we are still in the Public Hearing. Any discussion on this?

Mr. Hughes: Well, that thing came back here a couple of times before it was approved. And, if the decision hasn’t been written, they can’t even get the meter running or go for a Building Permit.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public on this particular application? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you. The Board will take a short recess to confer with Counsel on legal questions that have arisen from tonight’s applications. I would ask in the interest of time if the members of the public would please wait out in the hallway and we will call you in.
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Krishna Dixit requesting an extension to the Decision and Resolution to erect an addition on the existing building. Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote


John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes  

(Time Noted – 10:25PM)
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Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from last month and have all had a chance to read them. Do you have any additions, deletions, corrections? 

Mr. McKelvey: I have one correction. I think under the vote, it should be put at the end that I wasn’t present. It’s at the beginning, but it should be done at the end of each vote.

Absent on each one.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes as corrected? 

Mr. Hughes: So Moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Second?

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?    

Aye all.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: This meeting is closed until next month.

(Time Noted – 10:26PM)

